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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 
IIFL Asset Management Limited, 
  
The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 11TH Annual Report of IIFL Asset Management Limited (‘the Company’) 
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. 
 
1. Financial Results: 
The highlights of the financial results for the year under review are as under: 

                                                                                                            (INR in million) 

Particulars  2020-21* 2019-20* 

Gross Total Income 2,683.79  2,008.14  

Less: Expenditure 1,585.89  1,205.81  

Profit /(Loss) Before Taxation 1,097.90  802.33  

Less: Taxation – Current 281.80  205.34  

                           - Deferred  1.14  (1.57) 

                           - Mat Credit Gains - - 

                          - Short or Excess Provision of Income Tax  - - 

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax 814.95  598.56  

 
* Figure are as per Indian AS  
 
2. Review of Business and Operations: 
 
During FY2020-21, the company maintained its focus on enhancing the product suite across four asset classes (listed 
equities, private equities, credit and real estate). The company continued to institutionalize processes across functions 
and received valuable feedback and appreciation during its interactions, particularly from offshore investors. In terms 
of client coverage, the company had established connect with many offshore institutions and family offices over the 
past couple of years. These efforts resulted in IIFL AMC received a mandate of INR 3,784 Crore from an institutional 
investor. The company now manages an AUM of INR 7,133 Crore across offshore institutions and expects this to be an 
important growth driver going ahead. Domestically, on the sales and distribution front, the company added 43 new 
channel partners and performed multiple sales marketing related activities.  
 
As human capital is quintessential to any organization, we have witnessed increment in this capital over the year with 
the total head count of IIFL AMC increasing to 131. Senior leadership has been further strengthened by joining of Mr. 
Manoj Shenoy.  
 
During the year under review, the company was successful in achieving a net sale of approx. INR 10,017 Crore, led 
primarily by sales across listed equity funds. Till FY20, AUM in private equity used to have the highest AUM across asset 
classes. In FY 21, the top two asset classes were listed equity and private equity having an AUM of INR 15,738 Crore 
and INR 13,616 Crore respectively. On the other hand, liquid mutual funds and Structured credit products had a 
combined AUM of INR 2,851 Crore. The real estate funds now contribute to INR 5,118 Crore of AUM.  
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3. Macro-economic overview (FY 2020-2021) 
 

• Year in review 
The year 2020 turned out to be a year with extraordinary challenges for global economies with IMF announcing a real 
GDP degrowth of 3.3% in the global economy. Despite the pandemic related challenges, the massive fiscal packages, 
ultra-supportive monetary policies and a glimmer in the form of multiple vaccines being distributed have helped the 
financial assets witness a V-shaped recovery to close the year in green zone. Most of the equity indices touched across 
the globe their previous highs, many created new highs as well. While market sentiments over the last couple of 
quarters were uncertain of a visible economic recovery path due to renewed lockdowns, with roll out of vaccine, now 
the global economic turnaround appears a factor of “when”, rather than “if”. Off and on, rising yields of US treasury 
bonds, rapid increase in COVID-19 cases, renewed lockdowns coupled with other restrictions such as night curfews 
and pockets of weak macroeconomic data made the market participants to stay jittery in the last quarter of FY21.  
 
Back at home, the sharp recovery in the Indian equities were supported by all-time high foreign inflows (INR terms) 
which were keenly investing at attractive valuations and the possibility of sharp earnings growth over the next few 
years. Further, favorable measures by RBI, declining COVID cases over the second half of the year, massive 
manufacturing of vaccines, and upbeat recovery in global markets upheld the investor sentiments.  
 
Favorable measures announced during the Union budget should lead to a expansion in economic growth. Efficiency 
and pace of vaccination along with global cues and capital flows shall now be key events to monitor.  
 
The World Bank (WB) elevated its forecast of India’s GDP growth for FY22 to 10.1%, noticeably higher than the 5.4% it 
had projected in January, as per its South Asia Economic Focus Spring update report. There are a few risks in the near 
term which market participants should closely watch out for (1) Return to normalcy could take longer than anticipated 
given the unprecedented rise in the COVID-19 cases across the country (2) Lockdown/strict restrictions in certain 
states. 
 
While the new wave of COVID-19 and the resultant lockdown in certain parts of countries will act as an overhang on 
the headline numbers, most state governments pushing for higher vaccination inoculations is expected to normalize 
the curve of patients with serious complications thereby reducing the burden on existing medical infrastructure. We 
believe the volatility could increase in the near term owing to inflationary pressures at global and domestic levels, 
however, pick up in earnings growth may auger well for Indian equities, albeit the pace could be slower than 
anticipated. The market polarization is likely to reverse as the recovery becomes more broad-based and hence provide 
ample room for wealth creation by bottom up stock selection. 

4. Outlook 
 

• Equity Markets 
We believe that the lockdown/restrictions could have a short-term impact on most sectors, however the effect will be 
transient in nature. At this stage, where we anticipate delayed pick-up in the economic recovery (provided a third wave 
doesn’t derail the growth), we are focusing on opportunities across these defensives and cyclicals based on our ROE 
and PAT growth parameters. While exposure to sectors such as Financials, Industrials, and Building materials are more 
structural in nature to benefit from the acceleration in the growth trajectory, we would also tactically look at 
opportunities in the defensive segment where the impact of the short term disruptions is likely to be limited. We 
continue to focus on bottom up security selection while having a positive bias towards cyclical recovery and taking 
tactical calls based on the market dynamics. 



IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED  
  
Corporate & Registered Office:  
6th Floor, IIFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,   
Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013  
Tel: (91-22) 4876 5600 | Fax: (91-22) 4646 4706  

 secretarial@iiflw.com   
(IIFL Wealth Group)  
www.iiflamc.com   CIN: U74900MH2010PLC201113  
 

• Debt Markets 
Considering the impact of the pandemic, most central banks looked to a fresh round of monetary easing to improve 
liquidity and support economic growth. The reserve bank of India also followed suit by announcing repo cuts, reduction 
in CRR for a year and improving liquidity through measures like Long Term Repo Operations (LTROs) to mitigate the 
adverse impact of tightening financial conditions in the domestic markets. Furthermore, usage of unconventional steps 
like LTROs signifies RBI’s willingness to promptly act when necessary. This helped address the sudden steepening of 
the yield curve and a substantial spread between short term and long-term government debt securities. While the 
longer end of the yield curve remains attractive, a higher supply of both state and central government borrowing may 
offset some of the gains.  

Outlook for the business:  

 
During FY20/21, our AUM grew by 70%. The AUM growth was achieved despite disruption in the markets. For the year, 
we achieved net sales of more than 10,000 Crore spread across asset classes and geographies. The year was particularly 
successful from institutional mandates perspective. We added a large Sovereign Wealth Fund towards the end of the 
year, increasing the total count of institutional mandates with AMC to 3.  
 
During the year, a continuous increase in our product suite helped support the growth in AUM. While maintaining our 
focus as an alternative asset manager, we continued to find product opportunities across other product segments (like 
portfolio management services and mutual funds). Our continuous focus on niche product strategies helped us 
maintain a revenue yield of about 63bps on our assets. 

• Summary of developments across key platforms is as below 
 

• Alternative investment funds (AIFs) 
 
During the first couple of quarters, we continued to focus on raising commitments in already launched schemes (High 
Conviction Fund - Series 1, India Housing Fund - Series 2 and IIFL Seed Ventures Fund – Series).  
In Q2, on unlisted equity side, AMC launched a new fund during the quarter, IIFL India Private Equity Fund Series 1A 
which intended to invest in financial intermediaries which are dominant players in their segments; the scheme has 
raised over INR 1,522 Crore and has proved to be a successful launch.  
In Q3, we launched IIFL Equity Opportunities Fund, a fund of fund, which aims to provide a unique opportunity to invest 
in the best-in-class technology focused VC Funds primarily focused at providing follow on capital to top performing 
digital companies along with other marquee investors. It garnered a commitment of INR 620 Crore. 
In Q4, we launched another fund on unlisted equity side, IIFL Special Opportunities Fund Series 8, which would invest 
in late stage consumer tech deals. The fund received a fantastic response garnering over INR 1,300 Crore by end of 
April 2021.  
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• Portfolio management services (PMS) 
On listed equity front, in PMS, while regular sales from distributor platforms continued during the year, multiple 
communications to investors informing about product performance and offering easy one click top-ups in PMS 
strategies were sent. The business in PMS was disrupted due to pandemic, but AMC had launched editable forms to 
enable business continuity. In Q4, we added a new strategy, IIFL Phoenix Portfolio which intends to create a portfolio 
of such businesses with an established track record, which have the potential to see a sharp improvement in 
fundamentals in the future.  
Over the year, we continued to onboard new distribution partners and achieve scale across our existing products 
(multicap and multicap advantage PMS). Despite disruptions, PMS witnessed a net sale of INR 434 Crore during the 
year.  

• Mutual Funds (MFs) 
We continued focus on scaling IIFL Focused Equity Fund during the year. For most of the year, the fund was the best 
performing fund in its category in MFs. We added a net sale of INR 379 Crore during the year. We further increased 
our focus towards increasing SIPs in the scheme from online channels. Towards the end of the year, we also filed for 
quant based funds with AMFI (IIFL Smart Fund). We are awaiting approvals from the regulator on the same. 
 

Offshore/Institutions 
In terms of client coverage, we have established connect with many offshore institutions, wealth funds and family 
offices over the past year. During the year, we received an additional investment from one of our existing advisory 
mandates. We also onboarded a new SWF mandate with an investment of INR 3,784 Crore.  
 
We continue to see opportunities to enhance our product offering across our four asset classes (Listed equities, private 
equities, credit and real estate). We aim to maintain our position as the largest alternative asset manager in India and 
build a complete range of product offerings across asset classes. 

 
5. Dividend: 

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant circumstances and keeping in view 
the company’s dividend distribution policy, had declared and paid an interim dividend of INR 8.50/- per equity shares 
on August 21, 2020 and INR 46/- per equity shares on March 22, 2021 and the Company has not recommended any 
final dividend for FY 2020-21. 
 

6. Transfer to Reserves: 
The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the reserves for the year under 
review. 
 

7. Share Capital: 
During the year under review, the Company has not made any issue of equity shares. As on March 31, 2021, the total 
of issued, subscribed and paid up capital of the Company stood at INR 32,10,00,000/-. 
 

8. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associates:  
The Company does not have any subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates.  
 

9. Deposits: 
During the year under review, your Company has not accepted/ renewed any deposit within the meaning of Section 
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules thereto. 
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10. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
a. Directors: 
 
As on March 31, 2021, The Board consists of the following Directors namely: 
1) Mr. Kumar Sharadindu – Independent Director,  
2) Mrs. Smita Aggarwal – Independent Director,  
3) Mr. Ravi Sethurathnam- Independent Director, Appointed w.e.f. February 25, 2021 
4) Mr. Anup Maheshwari – Whole Time Director  
5) Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani –  Non-Executive Director 
6) Mr. Manoj Shenoy- Whole Time Director - Appointed w.e.f. March 22, 2021 
 

Directors retiring by rotation: 

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of applicable provisions of the Articles of the Company, 

Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani, Non-Executive Director of your Company, retires by rotation at ensuring Annual General 

Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.  

Further, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Independent Directors are not liable to retire by 

rotation. 

 
Independent Director’s Data Base & Proficiency Test: 

In terms of the recently introduced regulatory requirements name of every Independent Director should be added in 
the on-line database of Independent Directors by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar (“IICA”). Accordingly, 
the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the IICA for the said purpose.  
 
The opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of Independent 
Directors is complied with. 
 

i.Board Meetings: 
The Board met Nine times during the year, discussed and approved various matters concerning new products, 
financials, and appointment of director and key managerial personnel, audit reports, SEBI inspection reports, 
compliance reports and other board businesses. 
 
 

ii.Committees of the Board 
There are currently three Committees of the Board, as follows:  
 

A) Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee currently consists of Mrs. Smita Aggarwal, Mr. Kumar Sharadindu, Mr. Ravi Sethurathnam and 
Mr. Anup Maheshwari. The role, terms of reference and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2013 & internal policies. The Committee met five times during the year under 
review and discussed on financials and audit related issues. During the period under review all the recommendations 
of the Audit committee were accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
The terms of reference of audit committee, inter alia, includes; 
 

• Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company; 

• Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
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• Approval of quarterly and annual financials and recommend the same to the Board; 

• Review and comment on observation(s) raised by Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Secretarial       
              Auditors; 

• Review and comment on observation(s) raised under any regulatory inspections; 

• Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties: 
               Provided that the Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to                       

be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions as may be prescribed; 

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

• Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

• Monitoring the end use of funds of the company and related matters. 
 
B) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
As per the provision of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kumar Sharadindu, Mrs. Smita Aggarwal and Mr. 
Venkataraman Rajamani are currently members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the 
Committee has formulated a nomination and remuneration policy and the said policy is available for inspection and 
available on website of the Company: www.iiflamc.com 
The same is annexed as an Annexure I to this Report.  
 
C) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 
As per the provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kumar Sharadindu, Mrs. Smita Aggarwal and Mr. Anup 
Maheshwari. are currently the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) The CSR 
Committee has approved and adopted CSR Policy of the Company. The details about the policy developed and 
implemented on Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives taken during the year under review is attached as Annexure 
II.  
 
Separate meeting of Independent Directors: 
 
In compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 
22, 2021 inter alia, to discuss the following: 
 
(a) to review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
 
(b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive directors 
and non-executive directors; 
 
(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 
 
Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction over the performance of the 
other Directors and Board as a whole. They also expressed their satisfaction over the quality, quantity and flow of 
information between the company management and the Board/ Committees of the Board from time to time.  
 

iii. Formal Annual Evaluation: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee has carried out 
evaluation of every directors’ performance and subsequently the Board has carried out the annual performance 
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually including Independent Directors as well as the evaluation 
of the working of its Committees. 
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iv. Declaration by Independent Directors - 

The Company has received declaration from each independent director under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 
2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013.  
 

b. Key Managerial Personnel:  
During the year under review, Mr. Anup Maheshwari continued as Whole Time Director of the Company and he 
resigned as Chief Executive Officer with effect from March 19, 2021 closing business hours and Mr. Manoj Shenoy was 
being appointed as Whole Time Director with effect from March 22, 2021 and as Chief Executive Officer with effect 
from February 02, 2021 of the Company. Mr. Prashasta Seth resigned as Chief Executive Officer of the Company 
effective December 31, 2020.  Ms. Priya Biswas is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, managing the financial 
affairs of the Company. Mr. Chinmay Joshi is the Company Secretary of the company managing the Secretarial and 
Compliance Function of the Company. 
 
The List of Key Managerial Personnel as on March 31, 2021 is below: 
 
1. Mr. Anup Maheshwari – Whole Time Director 
2. Mr. Manoj Shenoy – Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer 
3. Ms. Priya Biswas – Chief Financial Officer 
4. Mr. Chinmay Joshi – Company Secretary 
 

 
11. Managerial Remuneration: 

During the year under review, the employees were drawing remuneration pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 the details of the same will be made available if a written request is received from the shareholders. Further, if 
the request is received prior to the date of Annual General Meeting the details will be made available within 3 days 
and if the request if received post the date of Annual General Meeting then such particulars will be made available 
within 7 days. 
 

12. Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Scheme:  
The Company does not have an employee stock option / stock purchase scheme. However, employees of the Company 
are granted options of IIFL Wealth Management Limited, holding company. 
 

13. Risk Management Policy and Internal Adequacy:  
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 

objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating 

actions on a continuous basis. These are discussed at the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

of the Company.  There is Risk Management Committee in order to monitor and mitigate risk. The Company also 

invoked its business continuity measures to deal with the unprecedented contingency of the COVID-19 outbreak and 

it could smoothly move to a Work From Home arrangement using a Virtual Private Network (VPN),  keeping disruption 

to day to day operations, internal controls  and servicing of investors to a minimum, except in line with industry level 

changes with respect to cut-off times advised by the Association of Mutual Funds of India (AMFI) and limitation in 

certain services announced by Registrar and Transfer Agents,  during the lockdown period announced by the 

Government in the wake of the COVID19 outbreak.    

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements and operations and the 

same are operating effectively. The Internal Auditors have tested the design and effectiveness of the key controls and 
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no material weaknesses were observed in their examination. Further, Statutory Auditors also review controls over 

financial reporting as part of their audit.    

14. Internal Financial Control: 
 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business 
objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating 
actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.  

 
 The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements and operations and the 

same are operating effectively. The Statutory Auditors verified the systems and processes and confirmed that the 
Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating effectively. 

 
15. Extract of Annual Return: 

The Annual Return in form MGT 7 will be uploaded on the Company’s Website www.iiflamc.com 

 
16. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting the going concern status 

of the company:  
 There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact the 

going concern status and the Company’s future operations. 
 
17. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company:  
 There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the 
date of the report.  

 
18. Statutory Auditors: 

 
M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018 as 
recommended by the Audit Committee and the Board, are appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold 
office for a second term of 5 years i.e. till conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2025.  

 
19. Comments on auditors’ report: 
 There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the auditors, in their report. The 

Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company in the year under 
review. 
 

20. Secretarial Audit: 
During the year under review, the Secretarial Audit was conducted by M/s. J.U. Poojari & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Report of the Secretarial 
Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure III. There were no qualifications, reservations or observations in the Secretarial 
Audit Report. The Board of Directors have to state that the Company has been compliant of all applicable provisions 
of the Act for Financial Year 2020-2021.  

 
21. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:  
 The details of loans (Assets) or investments made are provided in the Financial Statement (Please refer Note No. 5 and 

6 respectively of the Financial Statement). In the FY 2020-21, there are no Borrowings or Guarantees. 
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22. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 
 All related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in ordinary course of the business of 

the Company and were at arm’s length. No contract/ arrangement has been entered by the Company with its 
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest 
of the Company. Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of 
business and were on an arm’s length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company. The transactions with 
related party are disclosed by way of notes to accounts vide note no. 33 in the standalone financial results of the 
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 

  
 Justification for entering into Related Party Transactions: 
 The Company usually enters into Related Party Transaction to ensure timely availability of products/ services required. 
 
23. Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 
 The information on energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated 

under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
appended below: 

 
Conservation of energy: 

The Company is engaged in providing financial services and as such its operations do not account for substantial energy 
consumption. However, the Company is taking all possible measures to conserve energy. Several environment friendly 
measures were adopted by the Company such as: 
 

• Installation of capacitors to save power, 

• Installed Thin Film Transistor (TFT) monitors that saves power, 

• Light Emitting Diode (LED) lights,  

• Automatic power shutdown of idle monitors, 

• Creating environmental awareness by way of distributing the information in electronic form, 

• Minimising air-conditioning usage,  

• Shutting off all the lights when not in use, and  

• Education and awareness programs for employees. 
 
The management frequently puts circulars on corporate intranet, IWIN for the employees educating them on ways 
and means to conserve the electricity and other natural resources and ensures strict compliance of the same. 

 

Technology absorption and innovation: 

The management understands the importance of technology in the business segments it operates and lays utmost 
emphasis on system development and use of best technology available in the industry. The management keeps itself 
abreast of technological advancements in the industry and ensures continued and sustained efforts towards 
absorption of technology, adaptation as well as development of the same to meet the business needs and objectives. 
 
The management invested considerable resources in deploying the latest technologies in the areas of wide area 
networking using MPLS, video communications, VoIP, automated dialers and other customer relationship management 
(CRM) tools and software. The Company also made significant strides in using cloud technology for customer-facing 
servers providing rapid and inexpensive ramp-up or down of capacity in line with business requirements. 
 
The management is aware of increasing threats in the Information Security domain and has taken several steps to 
ensure that the Company is safe guarded against hacking attacks, data leakage and security breaches. IT and certain 
business processes have been recertified for ISO 27001 systems for practicing industry standard security 
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implementations and processes. The management has invested resources in implementing controls and continuously 
monitoring violations, if any. 
 
Foreign exchange earnings/outgo (INR in millions): 
a.) The Foreign exchange earnings: INR 139.47 
 
b.) The Foreign exchange expenditure: INR 50.37 

 
Research and Development (R & D): The Company is engaged in distribution of various financial products and advising 
clients on wealth management through mutual fund and alternative investment fund platform, which entails internal 
research of investment products, sectors and markets. 
 

24. Disclosures   under   Sexual   Harassment   of   Women   at   Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 
2013:  

The Company is committed to provide a work environment that ensures every woman employee is treated with dignity 
and respect and afforded equitable treatment. The Company is also committed to promote a work environment that 
is conducive to the professional growth of its women employees and encourages equality of opportunity. The Company 
will not tolerate any form of sexual harassment and is committed to take all necessary steps to ensure that its women 
employees are not subjected to any form of harassment. 

 
 Your Directors further state that during the year under review your Company has formulated and adopted a ‘Policy for 

Prevention / Prohibition / Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace’, and that there were no 
cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 

 
25. Frauds: 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
26. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that: 
 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures; 
 

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period; 
 

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and  
 

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
Secretarial Standards and that such system were adequate and operating effectively. 
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The Directors further confirm that, they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

27. Downstream Investment: 
During the financial year 2020-21, the Company has not made any downstream investments in terms Foreign Direct 

Investment Policy. 

 

28. Green Initiative: 
Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed there under allows the Company to send its Financial 

Statements by electronic mode to such Members whose shareholding is in dematerialized format and whose email 

addresses are registered with the Depositories for communication purposes. As a responsible corporate citizen, the 

Company proposes to effect electronic delivery of the Annual Report of the Company in lieu of the paper form to the 

Members who have registered their email IDs with the Depositories. A physical copy of the Annual Report will be sent 

to those Members who have not registered their email addresses with the Depositories for receiving electronic 

communication. A physical copy of this Annual Report can also be obtained free of cost by any member from the 

registered office of the Company on any working day during the business hour. 

A copy of this Annual Report for FY 2020-21 is available on website of the Company, www.iiflamc.com 

 
29. Annexure(s) forming part of this Report of Directors: 

 The Annexure(s) referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed are annexed 
herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors: 

 

• Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company as Annexure I. 

• Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2020-21 –        Annexure 
- II. 

• Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 as Annexure – III. 
 

30. Acknowledgements: 
We are thankful for the significant contribution made by our employees and also express our sincere thanks and 
appreciation to Securities and Exchange Board of India, Association of Mutual Fund of India, the Company’s Bankers, 
Auditors and Counsels for their continued support and co-operation. 
 
We also acknowledge the support and the continued co-operation received from IIFL Wealth Management Limited, 
sponsor during the year under review. We look forward to the same going forward.  
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
Sd/-                                                         Sd/- 
    
Kumar Sharadindu                                                   Manoj Shenoy 
Chairman                                                   Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer 
DIN: 07341455                                                                            DIN: 08258671 
Date: May 15, 2021 
Place: Mumbai  

http://mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
ANNEXURE I 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

I. OBJECTIVE: This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the Committee) and Board of 
Director. 
 

II.   DEFINITIONS: 
 

1. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time.  
 
2. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company. 
 
3. “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means: 

• Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager 

• Whole-time Director; 

• Chief Financial Officer; 

• Company Secretary; and such other officer as may be prescribed. 
 

4. “Research Analysts” shall have the same meaning as defined under the SEBI (Research Analysts) Regulation, 2014 as 
amended from time to time. 
 

5. “Senior Management” means the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team 
excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the executive directors, 
including the functional heads. 
 
Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined 
in the Companies Act, 2013 / Listing agreement (wherever applicable) as maybe amended from time to time shall 
have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 

 
III. ROLE OF COMMITTEE:  

 

• To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 
 

• To recommend to the Board on policy on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior 
Management and other employees. 
 

• To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further 
evaluation of the Board.  
 

• To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 
 

• To devise a policy on Board diversity. 
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IV. APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 
 

1. Appointment Criteria and Qualifications: 
a) A person being appointed as director, KMP or in senior management should possess adequate qualification, 

expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered for appointment.  

b) Independent Director: 
 

(i) Qualifications of Independent Director: 
An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, 
law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, operations or other disciplines 
related to the company's business. 
 

(ii) Positive attributes of Independent Directors: 
An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who shall 
uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise his responsibilities in a 
bona-fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to his professional obligations 
for informed and balanced decision making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance 
practices. 
 

2. Removal: 
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations 
there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, 
KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 
 

3. Retirement: 
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management 
Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of 
the Company. 
 

V. REMUNERATION: 
A. Directors:  
a. Executive Directors (Managing Director, Manager or Whole Time Director):  

 

(i) At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Executive Directors shall be paid such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the N&R Committee and the Board of Directors) within the 
overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(ii) The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting as per the 
requirement of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(iii) The remuneration of the Manager/ CEO/ Managing Director/ Whole Time Director is broadly divided into fixed and 
incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.  
 
In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and performance bonus), the Committee shall 
consider the following: 

• the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark; 



IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED  
  
Corporate & Registered Office:  
6th Floor, IIFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,   
Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013  
Tel: (91-22) 4876 5600 | Fax: (91-22) 4646 4706  

 secretarial@iiflw.com   
(IIFL Wealth Group)  
www.iiflamc.com   CIN: U74900MH2010PLC201113  
 

 

• balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives, appropriate to the 
working of the Company and its goals; 
 

• responsibility required to be shouldered, the industry benchmarks and the current trends; 
 

• the Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual budget achievement and individual performance. 
 

b. Non-Executive Director: 

(i) The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive fees for attending meeting of Board or Committee thereof. 
Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rupees One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or 
such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 
 

(ii) A Non-Executive Director may be paid commission on an annual basis, of such sum as may be approved by the Board 
on the recommendation of the Committee. 
 

(iii) The Committee may recommend to the Board, the payment of commission, to reinforce the principles of collective 
responsibility of the Board. 
 

(iv) In determining the quantum of commission payable to the Directors, the Committee shall make its recommendation 
after taking into consideration the overall performance of the Company and the onerous responsibilities required to 
be shouldered by the Director. 
 

(v) The total commission payable to the Directors shall not exceed prescribed limits as specified under Companies Act, 
2013. 
 

(vi) The commission shall be payable on prorate basis to those Directors who occupy office for part of the year. 
 

b. KMP & Senior Managerial Personnel: 
The remuneration to the KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be based on following guidelines: 
 

• maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company; 
 

• compensation should be reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate KMP and senior management; 
 

• Remuneration payable should comprise of a fixed component and a performance linked variable based on the extent 
of achievement of individual performance vis-a-vis overall performance of the company; 
 

• Remuneration shall be also considered in form of long-term incentive plans for key employees, based on their 
contribution, position and length of service, in the nature of ESOPS/ESPS. 
 

c. Research Analysts: 

(i) The compensation of all individuals employed as Research Analyst shall be reviewed, documented and approved at 
least annually by the Committee. 
 

(ii) While approving the compensation of the Research Analysts, the Committee shall not consider: 
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a. Any specific merchant banking or investment banking or brokerage services transaction which might have 

happened because of the services of the Research Analyst; and 
 
b. Any contribution made by the Research Analyst to the Company’s investment banking or merchant banking or 

brokerage services business other than that of preparing and / or providing research reports. 
 

VI. EVALUATION: 
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director at regular interval (yearly). The 
Committee shall also formulate and provide criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board as a 
whole, if applicable.  
 

VII. OTHER DETAILS: 
 
Membership 
The Committee shall consist of minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being independent. The 
Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the Company shall not be a 
Chairman of the Committee. The term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Director. 
 
Frequency of Meetings 
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. The Committee may invite 
such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee. 
 
Secretary 
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. In absence of Company Secretary, 
the Committee may designate any other officials or any of the members of the Committee who shall act a Secretary of 
the Committee. 
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ANNEXURE II 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company. 
a. The CSR Policy and projects of IIFL Asset Management Ltd. are steered by the same values that guide the business 

of the IIFL Wealth and Asset Management group of companies. 
 
b. In order to consolidate our efforts towards impactful CSR, the IIFL Wealth and Asset Management group 

established the IIFLW CSR Foundation (“Foundation”) to design and implement CSR activities on behalf of the 
IIFLWAM group entities. 

 
c. We strongly believe in enabling inclusion to bridge the gap of available opportunities and equality for both - 

communities that have not been given an opportunity and for those whom such opportunities are unattainable 
due to monetary or other reasons. 

 
d. Our vision for the Foundation is to bring about a positive change in the lives of underprivileged individuals and 

communities by enabling a strategic and collaborative partnership. 
 
e. Through our CSR efforts, we look at collaborative efforts with existing philanthropy to move the needle on impact. 
 
2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

 

Sr. No. Name of Director Designation/Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of Meeting 
of CSR Committee 
held during the year 

Number of 
Meetings of CSR 
Committee 
attended during the 
year 

1. Mr. Kumar Sharadindu Independent Director 2 2 

2. Mrs. Smita Aggarwal Independent Director 2 2 

3. Mr. Anup Maheshwari Whole Time Director 2 2 

 
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 

are disclosed on the website of the company: www.iiflamc.com 
 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).: Not 
applicable 
 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not 
applicable 
 
 

 

http://www.iiflamc.com/
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Sr. No. Financial Year Amount Available for set-off 
preceding financial year (INR) 

Amount required to be set off for the 
financial year, if any (INR) 

NA NA NA NA 

 
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) - INR 62,04,78,271 
 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 1,24,09,565 
 
(b)Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years. – Not      Applicable 
 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any – Not Applicable 
 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): INR 1,24,09,565 
 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

Total Amount Spent for 
the Financial Year (INR) 

Amount Unspent (INR) 

 Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to Section 135(5) 

 Amount (INR) Date of transfer Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(INR) 

Date of 
Transfer 

1,24,09,565 NA NA NA NA NA 

 

(b)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sr. 

No

. 

Name of 

the 

Project 

Item

s 

from 

the 

list 

of 

activ

ities 

in 

Sche

dule 

VII to 

the 

Act. 

Local 

Area 

(Yes/

No.) 

Location of the 

Project 

Proj

ect 

Dura

tion 

Amou

nt 

allocat

ed for 

the 

Projec

t (INR) 

Amo

unt 

Spen

t in 

the 

curr

ent 

fina

ncial 

year 

(INR

) 

Amou

nt 

transf

erred 

to 

Unspe

nt CSR 

Accou

nt for 

the 

Projec

t as 

per 

Sectio

n 

135(6) 

(INR) 

Mode of 

Impleme

ntation – 

Direct 

(Yes/No.

) 

Mode of 

Implementation 

– Through 

Implementing 

Agency 

    State Distri      Name CSR 
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ct Registr

ation 

Numbe

r 

1 Quality 

and 

Affordab

le 

Primary 

Health 

Services 

for the 

Urban 

Poor in 

Mumbai  

(via 

Swasth 

Foundati

on) 

(i) Yes Mahara

shtra 

Mum

bai 

1 

year 

20,00,

000 

0 NA No IIFLW 

CSR 

Found

ation 

CSR000

01897 

2 Project 

Dialysis  

(via 

Fairfax 

India 

Charitabl

e 

Foundati

on) 

(i) Yes Gujarat Anand 1 

Year 

18,81,
600  

0 NA No IIFLW 

CSR 

Found

ation 

CSR000

01897 

3 Bridging 

the 

Digital 

Divide 

among 

children 

in low 

income 

commun

ities in 

Tamil 

Nadu 

(via 

United 

Way of 

Chennai) 

(ii) No Tamil 

Nadu 

Multi

ple 

Distri

cts 

1 

Year 

15000

00 

0 NA No IIFLW 

CSR 

Found

ation 

CSR000

01897 

4 Supporti (ii) Yes Delhi South 1 15,00, 0 NA No IIFLW CSR000
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ng low 

income 

househol

ds with 

children 

in 

Govern

ment 

schools 

for 

better 

learning 

outcome

s in Delhi  

(via 

Saajha) 

West 

Delhi 

Year 000 CSR 

Found

ation 

01897 

5 Infrastru

cture 

support 

for home 

for 

underpri

vileged 

semi-

orphan 

children 

(via 

Paraspar

am 

Trust) 

(iii) No Tamil 

Nadu 

Theni  1 

Year 

15,00,

000 

0 NA No IIFLW 

CSR 

Found

ation 

CSR000

01897 

6 STEM 

educatio

n for 

underpri

vileged 

students 

(ii) Yes Mahara

shtra, 

Karnata

ka, 

Delhi 

Mum

bai, 

Banga

lore, 

Delhi 

1 

Year 

33,50,

166 

0 NA No IIFLW 

CSR 

Found

ation 

CSR000

01897 

To

tal 

      1,17,3

1,766 

     

 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
the Project 

Item 
from 
the list 
of 

Local 
Area 
(Yes/N
o.) 

Location of the 
Project 

Amou
nt 
spent 
for the 

Mode of 
implementat
ion – Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of implementation 
– Through Implementing 
Agency 
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activiti
es in 
Schedu
le VII to 
the Act 

Project 
(INR) 

    State Distric
t 

  Name CSR 
Registrati
on 
Number 

1 Supporting 
specialised 
resources 
for Special 
School 
Program 
(via IIFL 
Foundatio
n and V-
Excel 
Educationa
l Trust) 

(ii) No Tamil 
Nadu 

Chenn
ai 

14,039 No IIFLW CSR 
Foundati
on 

CSR0000189
7 

2 Project 
Disha (via 
Jai Vakeel 
Foundatio
n and 
Research 
Centre) 

(ii) Yes Maharash
tra 

Multip
le 

1,00,0
00 

No IIFLW 
CSR 
Foundati
on 

CSR00001897 

3 India 
Young 
Leadership 
Developm
ent 
Program 
(via OASIS 
A Selfless 
Internatio
nal 
Society) 

(ii) No Gujarat Vador
a 

1,00,0
00 

No IIFLW 
CSR 
Foundati
on 

CSR00001897 

Tot
al 

    2,14,0
39 

  

 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads – INR 4,63,760/- 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable – Not Applicable 
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) – 1,24,09,565 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable 
 

Sr. Particulars Amount (INR) 
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No. 

(i) Two Percent of Average Net Profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) 1,24,09,565 

(ii) Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year 1,24,09,565 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any 

0 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years[(iii)-(iv)] 0 

 

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:  

Sr. No. Preceding 
Financial 
Year 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
Section 135(6) 
(INR) 

Amount spent 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 
(INR) 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 
per Section 135(6), if any 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial years 
(INR) 

    Name of 
the Fund 

Amount 
(INR) 

Date of 
transfer 

 

1. - Nil Nil NA NA NA 0 

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):  

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sr. 
No. 

Projec
t ID 

Name of the 
Project 

Financial 
Year in 
which the 
project was 
commence
d 

Project 
Duratio
n 

Total 
Amount 
allocate
d for the 
project 
(INR) 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
Project 
in the 
reportin
g 
Financia
l Year 
(INR) 

Cumulativ
e Amount 
spent at 
the end of 
the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (INR) 

Status of the 
Project – 
Completed/Ongoi
ng 

1 0001 STEM 

education for 

underprivilege

d students 

FY 2020-21 3 Years 66,49,83

4 

- 66,49,834 Ongoing 

2 0002 Maternal and 

Child health 

care for 

underprivilege

d 

communities 

FY 2020-21 3 Years 4,10,485 - 4,10,485 Ongoing 

Tota

l 

    70,60,31

9 

- 70,60,319  

 

IIFL Asset Management Limited has transferred a total of INR 1,04,10,485 (including INR 70,60,319 from FY 20) as 

commitment towards ongoing projects in the thematic areas mentioned in the tables 8 (b) and 9 (b) to be undertaken 
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by IIFLW CSR Foundation. The mode of implementation is either by itself or through sub-grants to other credible, 

experienced implementing agencies. The expected duration of utilization of these grants is over the next 36 months 

by March 31st, 2024. IIFL Asset Management Limited's Board will be monitoring the implementation of the ongoing 

projects with reference to the approved timelines and allocation until project completion. 

 

In case these funds have not been utilized by March 31st, 2024, the IIFLW CSR Foundation will transfer the funds to 

any fund specified under Schedule VII as per section 135(6). 

 

This year, IIFL Asset Management Limited has reported 100% of ongoing projects' funds as amount spent, despite being 

ongoing projects, as the money has been transferred to the implementing agency, IIFLW CSR Foundation.  

Feedback to the MCA is to include a provision to mention the funds that have been spent by the company but not 

utilized by the implementing agency as part of ongoing project expenses. 

 

10 In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year (Asset Wise Details) – Not Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)- Not Applicable 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. – Not Applicable  
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 

their address etc. – Not Applicable 
 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset). - Not Applicable 
 

11 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per Section 
135(5) – Not Applicable.  

 
 

For IIFL Asset Management Limited 
 

Sd/-        Sd/- 

 

Mr. Kumar Sharadindu      Mr. Manoj Shenoy 
Chairman CSR Committee     Whole Time Director & Chief Executive Officer 
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Annexure III 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2021 (Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 201 
 
 
To, 
The Members, 
IIFL Asset Management Limited 
 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by IIFL Asset Management Limited, having CIN:  U74900MH2010PLC201113 (hereinafter 
called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 
pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2021 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us 
and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, as may be applicable; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment.  The Company does not have any overseas investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings during the financial year. 

v. Other Acts, Laws, Regulations or Guidelines specifically applicable to the Company: 
 

a) The Securities And Exchange Board of India (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 as amended. 
b) The Securities And Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 1993 as amended 
c) The Securities And Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012. 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following  

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to meetings of the 
Board and its committees and General meetings. 
During the year under review and as per the explanations given and the representations made by the Management, 
the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act and Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 
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(a) The company is wholly-owned subsidiary of IIFL Wealth Management Ltd. by virtue of Section 2(87) of the Companies 

Act, 2013.  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) Adequate notice was given to all Directors at least seven days in advance to schedule the Board Meetings and its 
Committees exception some cases at shorter notice with the consent of all the Directors; Agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

(c) Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken with requisite majority. 
 
 
We further report that as represented by the Company and relied upon by us there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 
We further report that during the audit period, no significant events/ actions have taken place in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.: 
 
 
For   J. U. Poojari & Associates       
Company Secretaries 
 

Sd/- 
Jayaram U Poojari 

                                    FCS No: 8102 CP No: 8187 
 

Place:  Mumbai  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: May 15, 2021 
UDIN:                                                      
                                   
 
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this 
report. 
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‘Annexure A’ 
 
To,  
The Members  
of IIFL Asset Management Ltd. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
For   J. U. Poojari & Associates       
Company Secretaries 
 

Sd/- 
Jayaram U Poojari 

                                    FCS No: 8102 CP No: 8187 
 

Place:  Mumbai   
Date: May 15, 2021 
UDIN:                                                      
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To The Members of IIFL Asset Management Limited  
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIFL Asset Management Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March  2021, and its profit, total 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.  
 
 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent  of  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  
by  the  Institute  of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical  requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the  Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

   
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the in the Director’s report including Annexures to Directors’ 
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The 
Director’s report including Annexures to Directors’ report is expected to be made available to us 
after the date of this auditor's report. 
 
 

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and 
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

 
 When we read the Directors’  report including Annexures to Directors report , if we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those 
charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other 
Information’.  
 

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements   

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of  adequate accounting 
records in accordance  with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of  
appropriate accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section  143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors 
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 
 
. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.  

 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act.  
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act. 

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,  2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  
 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 

position as at 31st March 2021.  
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 
 
 
 
 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner) 

(Membership No.105035) 
                                                             (UDIN: 21105035AAAAEJ1465) 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 15 May 2021 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIFL Asset Management 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 

 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

 
 

 
 
 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner) 

(Membership No.105035) 
                                                                                                   (UDIN: 21105035AAAAEJ1465) 

                           
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 15 May 2021 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date) 
 
(i) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us the: 

 
(a)    The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including  
        quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.   

 
  (b)  The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in    
          accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for    
          physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the   
          information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such   
          verification. 
 
(c)    According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have 

any immovable properties of acquired freehold land and building. In respect of 
immovable properties of building that have been taken on lease and disclosed as Right 
of Use Assets in the Ind AS financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name 
of the Company. 

 
 

(ii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the CARO 
2016 is not applicable.  

  
 

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has granted unsecured loans to companies covered in the register maintained under 
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:  

    
(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not 

prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 
 
(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 

repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per 
stipulations. 

 
(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year end. 
 

 
(iv) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us the, 

the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, 
as applicable. 
 

(v) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year and hence reporting under 
clause (v) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.  
 

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us 
the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the services rendered by the Company. 
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(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

in respect of statutory dues:   

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and Employees’ State Insurance 
is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 
2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax as on 31 March 2021 which 

have not been deposited on account of disputes. 
 
 
(viii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and 
government. The Company has not issued any debentures. 
 

(ix) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 is not 
applicable.  

 
(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year.  
  

 
(xi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 
(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016 

is not applicable.  
 

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us 
the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 
 

 
 
 



 
 

Regd. Office. One International Center, Tower 3, 27th -32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Prabhadevi (West), Mumbai – 400 013, India.  
Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP is a limited Liability Partnership registered under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008 having LLP 
Identification No. AAB-8737. 
 
 

 
 
(xiv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

during the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 
2016 is not applicable.  

 
(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, 

during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors 
or directors of its holding company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of 
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 
(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. 
 
 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

 (Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)  
 
 
 
 

 Pallavi A. Gorakshakar 
(Partner)  

(Membership No. 105035)  
                                                             (UDIN: 21105035AAAAEJ1465) 

 
Place: Mumbai,  
Date:  15 May 2021   
 
 
 
 
 
 



(₹ in Mn)
SR.
No.

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

ASSETS

1 Financial Assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 84.06                             29.58                                     
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 3A 16.98                             -                                         
(c) Receivables 4

(I) Trade receivables 731.76                          650.57                                   
(II) Other receivables 3.59                               9.89                                       

(d) Loans 5 5.39                               1,521.24                               
(e) Investments 6 650.52                          29.31                                     
(f) Other financial assets 7 1.85                               0.10                                       

2 Non-Financial Assets 
(a) Current tax assets (net) 6.95                               51.89                                     
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 4.49                               6.06                                       
(c) Property, plant and equipment 9 0.07                               0.05                                       
(d) Other intangible assets 11 2.92                               6.32                                       
(e) Right to Use Asset 12 6.49                               1.59                                       
(f) Other non-financial assets 13 641.66                          650.35                                   

Total Assets 2,156.73                       2,956.95                               
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
1 Financial Liabilities 

(a) Payables 
(I)Trade payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

-                                 
-                                         

     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 14 261.86                          281.90                                   
(II) Other payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises -                                 -                                         
     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises -                                 -                                         

(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                                 -                                         
(c) Financial Lease Obligation 12 6.71                               1.67                                       
(d) Other financial liabilities 13 54.58                             100.23                                   

2 Non-Financial Liabilities 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 147.42                          61.28                                     
(b) Provisions 16 22.99                             22.01                                     
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 17 137.22                          30.68                                     

3 EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 18 321.00                          321.00                                   
(b) Other equity 19 1,204.95                       2,138.18                               

Total Liabilities and Equity 2,156.73                       2,956.95                               
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Kumar Sharadindu Manoj Shenoy
Partner  Whole Time Director and 

Chief Executive Officer 
(DIN: 07341455) (DIN: 06679235)

Place : Mumbai Priya Biswas Chinmay Joshi
Dated: May 15, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Chairperson



(₹ in Mn)
Sr.
No.

Particulars Note No.  FY 2020-21  FY 2019-20 

1 Revenue from operations 
(a) Dividend & Distribution income on investments 20 0.00# 0.00#
(b) Fees and commission income 21 2,524.52                                1,850.32                                        

Total revenue from operations 2,524.52                                1,850.32                                        

2 Other income 22 159.27                                   157.82                                            

3 Total income (1+2) 2,683.79                                2,008.14                                        

Expenses 
(a) Finance costs 23 4.80                                        5.23                                                
(b) Fees and commission expenses 524.20                                   434.31                                            
(c) Impairment on financial instruments 24 0.00# 0.00#
(d) Employee benefits expenses 25 644.93                                   546.00                                            
(e) Depreciation, amortization and impairment 9,11,12 6.52                                        7.70                                                
(f) Others expenses 26 405.44                                   212.57                                            

4 Total expenses 1,585.89                                1,205.81                                        

5 Profit before tax (3-4) 1,097.90                                802.32                                           

6 Tax expense: 27
(a) Current tax 281.81                                   205.34                                            
(b) Deferred tax 1.14                                        (1.57)                                               

7 Profit for the year (5-6) 814.95                                   598.56                                           

8 Other comprehensive income 
(a) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits 1.70                                        (4.07)                                               
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss (0.43)                                       1.02                                                
Subtotal (a) 1.27                                        (3.05)                                               

(b) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Foreign curremcy translation reserve

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Subtotal (b) -                                                  
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (a+b) 1.27                                        (3.05)                                               

9
Total comprehensive income for the period (7+8)
(Comprising profit and other comprehensive income / (loss) for the 
year) 816.22                                   595.51                                           

10 Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 28 25.39                                      18.65                                              
Diluted (Rs.) 28 25.39                                      18.65                                              

# Amount less than ₹10,000/-
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Kumar Sharadindu Manoj Shenoy
Partner  Whole Time Director and Chief 

Executive Officer 
(DIN: 07341455) (DIN: 06679235)

Place : Mumbai Priya Biswas Chinmay Joshi
Dated: May 15, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Chairperson



(₹ in Mn)
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation and extraordinary item 1,097.90                                802.32                                               

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortisation 6.52                                   7.70                                               

Provision for employee benefits 5.18                                   4.59                                               

Fixed Assets written off -                                     6.32                                               

Net changes in fair value through Profit and Loss of investments (10.43)                                1.04                                               

Provision for Expected credit loss 0.00# 0.00#
Interest income (132.36)                             (138.92)                                         

Interest expenses 4.55                                   5.06                                               

Dividend Income from investments (0.00#) (0.00#)
(Profit)/loss on sale of investments (16.48)                                (19.94)                                           

Distribution fee-exempt (0.00#) (0.00#)
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment -                                          0.00#

Operating profit before working capital changes 954.88                                   668.17                                               
Changes in working Capital :

Increase in Financial/Non-financial Assets (175.88)                                                                      (789.17)

Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial/Non-financial Liabilities 124.72                               267.31                                          

Cash generated from operations 903.72                                   146.31                                               

Net income tax paid (152.30)                             (149.01)                                         

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) 751.42                                   (2.70)                                                  

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (13,465.33)                        (15,875.73)                                   

Sale of investments 12,877.40                         15,895.81                                     

Interest received 141.51                               130.46                                               

Dividend income (0.00#) 0.00#
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (includes intangible assets) (1.96)                                                                                (2.85)

Intercorporate Deposit - given to group companies (16,430.00)                        (9,921.40)                                      

Intercorporate Deposit - received to group companies 17,935.44                         9,807.60                                       

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 1,057.06                                33.89                                                 

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings - taken from group companies 4,377.00                            3,567.20                                       

Borrowings - repaid from group companies (4,377.00)                          (3,567.20)                                      

Interest paid (4.55)                                  (5.06)                                                  

Dividend paid (1,749.45)                          

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (1,754.00)                               (5.06)                                                  

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 54.48                                     26.13                                                 

 Opening Cash & cash equivalents 29.58                                 3.45                                                   

 Closing Cash & cash equivalents 84.06                                     29.58                                                 

# Amount less than ₹10,000/-
In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Kumar Sharadindu Manoj Shenoy
Partner Chairperson  Whole Time Director and 

Chief Executive Officer 
(DIN: 07341455) (DIN: 06679235)

Place : Mumbai Priya Biswas Chinmay Joshi
Dated: May 15, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
 STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(₹ in Mn)

Securities Premium Retained Earnings

Balance at the Apr 1, 2020                 321.00 204.00                      1,934.18                2,138.18                                   2,459.18                                 
Profits for the year                          -                                   -   814.95                   814.95                                      814.95                                     
Other comprehensive income 1.27                        1.27                                           1.27                                         
Dividends (1,749.45)               (1,749.45)                                 (1,749.45)                                
Balance at the Mar 31, 2021                321.00 204.00                      1,000.95                                                   1,204.95                                   1,525.95 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(₹ in Mn)

Securities Premium Retained Earnings

Balance at the Apr 1, 2019                 321.00 204.00                      1,338.67                1,542.67                                   1,863.67                                 
Profits for the year                          -                                   -   598.56                   598.56                                      598.56                                     
Other comprehensive income (3.05)                      (3.05)                                         (3.05)                                        
Balance at the Mar 31, 2020                321.00 204.00                      1,934.18                                                   2,138.18 2,459.18                                 

Securities Premium 

Retained Earnings

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

 

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar Kumar Sharadindu Manoj Shenoy
Partner Chairperson  Whole Time Director and 

Chief Executive Officer 
(DIN: 07341455) (DIN: 06679235)

Place : Mumbai Priya Biswas Chinmay Joshi
Dated: May 15, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid 
to shareholders.

Total Particulars

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Total Other Equity
Equity Share 

Capital

Particulars Equity Share 
Capital

Reserves & Surplus

Total Other Equity

Reserves & Surplus

Total

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities premium.



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 
Note 1. Corporate Information: 
IIFL Asset Management Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 
1956. The Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) 
Regulations, 1996 (‘the Regulations’) and acts as an investment manager to ‘IIFL Mutual Fund’. Pursuant to 
Regulation 24(b) of the Regulations, SEBI gave its No Objection to the Company to undertake Investment 
Management and Advisory Services to pooled assets including Alternative Investment Funds / Offshore Funds and 
to undertake Portfolio Management Services. Pursuant to the same, the Company acts as an Investment Manager 
to the Alternative Investments Funds and Venture Capital Fund.  The Company has also obtained Portfolio 
Management services license from Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and carries out the said services. The 
Company is registered with Securities and Exchange Commission as an Investment Adviser. 
 
Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
a) Statement of Compliance: 
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred by 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations 
require a different treatment 
 
b) These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their 
meeting held on May 15, 2021. 
 
c) Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when performance 
obligations are satisfied. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer 
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties 
 
The following is a description of principal activities from which the Company generates its revenue. 
 
• Investment/Fund Management fees: The fees are a series of a similar services and a single performance obligation 
satisfied over a period of time. These are recognised in accordance with the arrangements entered into with the 
respective customers. 
 
• Portfolio Management fees: The fees are a series of a similar services and a single performance obligation satisfied 
over a period of time. These are billed on a monthly / quarterly basis. 
 
• Others: Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably by reference to the 
stage of completion of the transaction. 
 
• Lending / Investments related Income 
- Interest income on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding 

and the effective interest rate including interest on investments that are classified as fair value through profit 
or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income. 

- Dividend/ distribution income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.  
 
d) Property, plant and equipment 
Measurement at recognition: 
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 
The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if 
the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful 
life that is materially different from that of the remaining item. 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and 
other non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition 
for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if any. Any trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a plant 
and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or 
plant and machinery is capitalized under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria 
are met.  
 
Capital work in progress and Capital advances:  

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. 

Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as Other 

Non-Financial Assets. 

Depreciation: Depreciation on each item of property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line 
Method based on the useful lives of the assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Significant components of assets identified separately pursuant to the requirements under Schedule 
II of the Companies Act, 2013 are depreciated separately over their useful life. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of 
lease.  
Individual assets / group of similar assets costing up to Rs.5,000 has been depreciated in full in the year of purchase. 
Lease hold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease hold period. 

 
Estimated useful life of the assets is as under: 

Class of assets Useful life in years 

Computers* 3 

Office equipment 5 

Furniture and fixtures* # 5 

 
* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by 
external valuers  the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which 
management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as 
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 
 
The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation 
methods are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, 
such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate. 
 
Derecognition: 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognized. 
 
e) Intangible assets 
 
Measurement at recognition: 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets arising on 
acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles are not 



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 
capitalized and the related expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the 
expenditure is incurred. Following initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful life are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, 
that are acquired separately, are carried at cost/fair value at the date of acquisition less accumulated impairment 
loss, if any. 
 
Amortization:  
 
Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The 
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the 
end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for 
as a change in an accounting estimate. 
 
Estimated useful economic life of the assets is as under: 

Class of assets Useful life in years 

Software  3-5  

 
Derecognition:  
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is measured 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized. 
 
f) Impairment 
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortization and are tested for 
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Assets that are subject to 
depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that carrying amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or 
sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment. 
 
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value 
in use. To calculate value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not 
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset 
belongs. Fair value less cost to sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s 
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal. Impairment losses, If any, are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and included in depreciation and amortization expenses.  
 
Impairment losses are reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously 
been recognized. 
 
g) Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 
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Financial assets  
Initial recognition and measurement:  
The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. 
 
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value 
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.  
However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.  
 
Subsequent measurement:  
For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:  
i. the Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and  
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
 
Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 
i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost  
ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)  
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
 
i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:  
A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:  

a) the Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows, and 

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company. 
Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 
 
ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:  
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 
- the Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting 

contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
For the above category, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognized in profit 
or loss and changes in fair value (other than on account of above income or expense) are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of such debt instruments at FVOCI financial 
assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is reclassified to Statement of Profit and 
Loss.  
 
iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 
A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This 
is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in associate Such 
financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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Derecognition:  
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires; 
ii. the Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially 

transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 
iii. the Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to 

pay the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement 
(thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

iv. the Company neither transfers nor retains, substantially all risk and rewards of ownership, and does not 
retain control over the financial asset. 

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI), the 
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
 
Impairment of financial assets:  
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not measured at FVTPL. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at 
lifetime ECL. 

• Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring 
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) 
through the expected life of that financial instrument. 
 

• The Company measures the loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If 
the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent cash shortfalls 
that will result if default occurs within the 12 months weighted by the probability of default after the reporting 
date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months. 
 

• When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, 
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with 
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers 
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of 
significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.  

 
For trade receivables and financial assets arising from transactions with in the scope of Ind AS 115 the Company 
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 
Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company 
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based 
on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for factors that are 
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and forward-
looking information. 
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The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the obligor is in severe financial 
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery.  
 
Financial Liabilities  
Initial recognition and measurement:  
The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. Having regards to the terms and structure of issuance, Financial Liabilities are categorized as 
follows: 
 
 
(i) recognized at amortised costs  
(ii) recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derivative component if any, 

which is not separated. 
(iii) where there is an embedded derivative as part of the financial liability, such embedded derivative is separated 
and recorded at fair value and the remaining component is categorized as on amortised costs.  
 
Subsequent measurement:  

(i) All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized as subsequently measured at amortized cost are 
subsequently measured using the effective interest method. 

(ii) All financial liabilities of the Company categorized at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit and loss statement. 

(iii) For derivatives embedded in the liability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair 
value through profit and loss and the liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

 
Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires.  
 
h) Derivative financial instruments 
The Company enters into derivative financial contracts, which are initially recognized at fair value at the date the 
contracts are entered into and subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The 
resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the derivative is designated and effective 
as a hedging instrument 
 
In a financial instrument involving embedded derivative, which is separated from the host contract, such embedded 
derivative component is accounted separately from the underlying host contract and is initially recognized at fair 
value and is subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting period and the resulting gain or loss is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging 
instrument.  
 
i) Fair Value  
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned 
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantages market for the asset or liability 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
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markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 
inputs). 
 
Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  
Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly  
Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability  
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same. 
j) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date  
Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items 
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.  
 
Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  
 
m) Income Taxes 
Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of 
current tax and deferred tax.  
 
Current tax:  
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs 
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable 
tax laws. 
 
Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. 
 
Deferred tax:  
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax 
Act, 1961. 
  
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of temporary 
differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction(other than business combination) 
that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized. Also, for 
temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities are not 
recognized.  
 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that 
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of 
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business 
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not recognized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such 
deferred tax assets to be utilized.  
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 
 
The deferred tax assets (net) and deferred tax liabilities (net) are determined separately for the company, as per 
their applicable laws and then aggregated. 
  
Presentation of current and deferred tax: 
 Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when 
they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. 
  
The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company 
has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
Company. 
 
k) Provisions and Contingencies 
The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such 
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying 
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).  
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation 
cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which 
likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 
l) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank 
balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less. 
 
m) Employee Benefits 
Short Term Employee Benefits:  
 
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term 
employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. the 
Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange 
for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits: 
I. Defined contribution plans:  

 
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into state managed retirement benefit schemes and will have no legal or constructive obligation 
to pay further contributions, if any, if the state managed funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee 
benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. the Company’s contributions 
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to defined contribution plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which 
they relate. The Company operates defined contribution plans pertaining to Employee State Insurance Scheme 
and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable employees  
 

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans: The Company recognizes contribution payable to a 
defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to 
the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for services received from employees before 
the reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the deficit payable is recognized as a liability after 
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services 
received before the reporting date, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead 
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund. 

 
II. Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognized in the 
Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date 
together with the adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past service costs. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected 
unit credit method. 

 
Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:  
The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations 
being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet represent 
the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, if applicable. Any 
defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing 
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan 
 
All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net interest on the defined benefit 
liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit 
liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included 
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. Such 
remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.  
 
n) Lease accounting (Ind AS 116) 
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or 

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 

exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 

the Company considers whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the Company has 

substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease and (iii) the Company 

has right to direct the use of the asset. 

 

As a lessee 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use 

asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 

payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs 

to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 

received. 

 

Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 

Where appropriate, the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain 

that the option will be exercised.   
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to 

the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful 

lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, 

the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements 

of the lease liability. 

 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 

determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing 

rate as the discount rate. 

 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including in-

substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise price 

under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal 

period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. 

 

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 

when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the 

Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if Company changes 

its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.  

 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of 

the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 

to zero.  

 

Lease liability and the right of use asset have been separately presented in the balance sheet and lease payments 

have been classified as financing activities. 

 

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a 

lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and assets with low value leases. The Company 

recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in statement of profit and loss over the 

lease term. The related cash flows are classified as operating activities.  

 

As a lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of the lease 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. 

All other leases are classified as operating leases. The Company recognizes income on operating leases based on the 

contractual arrangements.  

 

Critical accounting estimate and judgement 

Determination of lease term 

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with 

any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes 

assessment on the expected lease term on lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain 

that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. 
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Discount rate 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a 

portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.  

 

o) Borrowing Cost  
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of 
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as 
an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
 
p) Segment Reporting  

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker (CODM) of the Holding Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments of the Company. 
 

q) Share-based Compensation  

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share-based payments in the net profit using fair value 
in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards is charged to income on a 
straight line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award 
was in substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase to ESOP Reserve. 
 

r) Earnings Per Share:  

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed 
to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing 
ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, 
unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds 
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). 
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. 
 

2.2 KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected in future periods. 
 
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions: 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below: 
 
- Property, Plant and Equipment 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful 
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The lives are based on historical experience with similar 
assets and are based on changes in technical or commercial obsolescence. 
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-  Defined Benefit Obligation 
The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary 
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. 
 
- Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments 
When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the 
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. 
 
- Expected Credit Loss 
The provision for expected credit loss involves estimating the probability of default and loss given default based on 
the past experience and other factors. 
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Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of 
Cashflows)
Cash on hand 0.11                                 0.11                                  
Balance with banks 
    - In current accounts 83.95                               29.47                                
Others -                                    
Cash and cash equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of 
Cashflows) 84.06                               29.58                                

Note 3A. Bank Balance other than 3 above:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Other Bank Balances
In Earmarked Accounts                                16.98                                        -   
Total 16.98                               -                                    

Note 4. Receivables
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
(i) Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsecured* 731.76                            650.57                             
Total (i)- Gross 731.76                            650.57                             
Less: Impairment loss allowance 0.00# 0.00#
Total (i)- Net 731.76                            650.57                             
(ii)  Other receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 3.59                                 9.89                                  
Total (ii)- Gross 3.59                                 9.89                                  
Less: Impairment loss allowance -                                   -                                    
Total (ii)- Net 3.59                                 9.89                                  
* Includes Related party transactions (Refer note 33)
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

a)

b)

c) No trade receivables and other receivables are interest bearing.

d)

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or from other officers of the Company either severally or 
jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms or private companies 
respectively in which any directors is a partner, director or a member as at 31st March 2021, 31st March 2020.

The Company has adopted simplified approach for impairment allowance. Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") has been 
recognised for credit impaired trade receivables

There are no trade recievables with significant increase in credit risk (SICR) as at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 
2020.
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Note 5. Loans
(₹ in Mn)

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Through 
profit or loss 

Designated at fair 
value through 
profit or loss 

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 

Through profit 
or loss 

Designated at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss 

(A)
 (i)- Term loans - ICD* 4.03                      -                      -                  -                         -            4.03                 1,518.56                -                        -                      -                      1,518.56              
(ii) Others - Staff loan 1.36                      -                      -                  -                         -            1.36                 2.68                        -                        -                      -                      2.68                      
Total (A) -Gross 5.39                     -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                1,521.24                -                       -                      -                      -           1,521.24             
Less:Impairment loss 
allowance -                        -                      -                  -                         -            -                   -                          -                        -                      -                      -           -                        
Total (A) - Net 5.39                     -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                1,521.24                -                       -                      -                      -          1,521.24             

(B)
(iv) Unsecured 5.39                      -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                 1,521.24                -                        -                      -                      -           1,521.24              
Total (B)-Gross 5.39                     -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                1,521.24                -                       -                      -                      -          1,521.24             
(C )
(I) Loans in India 5.39                      -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                 1,521.24                -                        -                      -                      -           1,521.24              
Less: Impairment loss 
allowance -                        -                      -                  -                         -            -                   -                          -                        -                      -                      -           -                        
Total(C) (I)-Net 5.39                     -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                1,521.24                -                       -                      -                      -          1,521.24             
(II)Loans outside India -                        -                      -                  -                         -            -                   -                          -                        -                      -                      -           -                        
Less: Impairment loss 
allowance -                        -                      -                  -                         -            -                   -                          -                        -                      -                      -           -                        
Total (C) (II)- Net
Total C(I) and C(II) 5.39                     -                      -                  -                         -            5.39                1,521.24                -                       -                      -                      -          1,521.24             

* Includes Loan to related parties (Refer Note 33)

As at March 31, 2021

 Amortised cost  

At Fair value 

Subtotal Total 

As at March 31, 2020

 Amortised cost  

At Fair value 

Subtotal Total 
Loans
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Note 6. Investments
(₹ in Mn)

Through other 
comprehensive 

income 

Through profit or 
loss 

Designated at fair 
value through 
profit or loss 

Subtotal 
Through other 
comprehensive 

income 

Through profit or 
loss 

Designated at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss 

Subtotal 

(A)
Mutual funds -               -                        38.89                    -                            38.89                         -               38.89          -             -                      28.67                      -                    28.67                    -          28.67                 
Debt securities -               -                        610.98                  -                            610.98                       -               610.98        -             -                      -                          -                    -                        -          -                     
Equity instruments -               -                        0.50                      -                            0.50                           -               0.50            -             -                      0.50                        -                    0.50                      -          0.50                   
Alternate investment funds -               -                        0.15                      -                            0.15                           -               0.15            -             -                      0.14                        -                    0.14                      -          0.14                   

Total (A) -               -                        650.52                  -                            650.52                       -               650.52        -             -                      29.31                      -                    29.31                    -          29.31                 
(B)

i) Investments outside India -               -                        -                        -                            -                             -               -             -                      -                          -                    -                        -          -                     
ii) Investments in India -               -                        650.52                  -                            650.52                       -               650.52        -             -                      29.31                      -                    29.31                    -          29.31                 

Total (B) -               -                        650.52                  -                            650.52                       -               650.52        -             -                      29.31                      -                    29.31                    -          29.31                 
(C) -                     

Less: Allowance for impairment 
loss -               -                        -                        -                            -                             -               -              -             -                      -                          -                    -                        -          -                     

-                        -                     
Total- Net (D) = A-C -               -                        650.52                  -                            650.52                       -               650.52        -             -                      29.31                      -                    29.31                    -          29.31                 

Others Total 
Investments

As at March 31, 2020

Amortised 
cost 

At Fair value 
As at March 31, 2021

Amortised 
cost 

At Fair value 

Others Total 
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(₹ in Mn)

Name of Investment Face Value No. of Units Total Amount Face Value No. of Units Total Amount
Investment in Mutual Funds include :
IIFL DYNAMIC BOND FUND DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 10                          5,63,624.61           9.90                      10                  5,63,624.61    9.29                  
IIFL FOCUSSED EQUITY FUND  - DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 10                          8,26,539.44           21.41                   10                  8,26,539.44    12.02                
IIFL LIQUID FUND - DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 1,000                     4,769.07                7.58                      1,000            4,769.07         7.36                  
ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Growth

38.89                   28.67                
Investment in Equity Instrument include :
MF UTILITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 1.00                       5,00,000.00           0.50                      1.00               5,00,000.00    0.50                  

0.50                     0.50                  
Investment in Debt Securities include :
IIFL WEALTH PRIME LIMITED SR-FEB2027 10 NCD PERPETUAL FVRS5LAC 5,00,000.00          1,210.00                610.98                 

610.98                 
Investment in Alternate investment funds include :
IIFL INCOME OPPORTUNITIES FUND SERIES SPECIAL SITUATIONS - CARRY 3.9963                   1,010.77                 0.00                      3.9963          1,010.77         0.01                  
IIFL REAL ESTATE FUND (DOMESTIC) - SERIES 2 - CARRY 6.0634                   1,116.00                 0.01                      6.0634          1,191.00         0.01                  
IIFL REAL ESTATE FUND (DOMESTIC) - SERIES 4 - CARRY 9.1267                   1,375.00                 0.01                      9.1267          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SEED VENTURES FUND 1 - CARRY 9.7492                   1,500.00                 0.01                      9.7492          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 1 - CARRY 9.1727                   1,500.00                 0.01                      9.1727          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 2 - CARRY 9.2481                   1,500.00                 0.01                      9.2481          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 3 - CARRY 9.4449                   1,500.00                 0.01                      9.4449          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 4 - CARRY 10                          1,500.00                 0.01                      10                  1,500.00         0.02                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 5 - CARRY 10                          1,500.00                 0.01                      10                  1,500.00         0.02                  
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 7 - CARRY 10                          1,500.00                 0.02                      10                  1,500.00         0.02                  
IIFL YIELD ENHANCER FUND - CARRY 2.2369                   1,375.00                 0.00# 2.2369          1,500.00         0.00                  
INDIA HOUSING FUND  - CARRY 9.9152                   1,500.00                 0.01                      9.9152          1,500.00         0.01                  
IIFL SEED VENTURE FUND - KOGTA CO-INVESTMENT 10                          2,500.00                 0.03                      -                 -                   -                    

0.15                     0.14                  

Total 650.52                 29.31                

As at March 31, 2020As at March 31, 2021
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Note 7. Other financial assets
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 

Other deposits 0.04                              0.04                               
Advances to Group/Holding company (Refer Note
33) 1.81                              0.06                               
Total 1.85                              0.10                              

Note 8. Deferred Taxes

(₹ in Mn)
Opening
balance as at Apr 1, 
2020

Addition on 
acquisition/ merger

Recognised
in profit or
loss*

Foreign exchange 
difference

MAT credit
utilised/ 
Created

Recognised
in/reclassified
from OCI

Closing
balance as at 
Mar 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment, investment
property and intangible assets 0.92                              -                                 0.36                              -                               1.28                      
Impairment of Assets 0.00# -                                 0.00# 0.00#
Retirement benefits for employees 5.53                              -                                 0.69                              (0.43)                           5.79                      
Impact of Lease Accounting (IndAS 116) 0.02                              -                                 0.03                              -                            -                -                               0.05                      
Provision for expenses 0.89                              -                                 (0.89)                            -                            -                -                               (0.00)                     

Total deferred tax assets (A) 7.36                              -                                 0.18                              -                            -                (0.43)                           7.12                      

Offsetting of deferred tax (assets) with deferred
tax liabilities -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               (2.63)                     
Net Deferred tax (assets) 7.36                              4.49                      

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        

Depreciation -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        
Unrealised profit on investments etc. 1.30                              -                                 1.32                              -                            -                -                               2.63                      
Intangible assets -                                 -                            -                -                               -                        
Retirement benefits for employees -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        
Undistributed earnings in joint operations -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        
Derivative financial instruments -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        
Others -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 1.30                              -                                 1.32                              -                            -                -                               2.63                      
Offsetting of deferred tax liabilities with deferred 
tax (assets) -                                (2.63)                    
Net Deferred tax liabilities -                                -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               (0.00)                     

Deferred tax assets (A - B) 6.06                              -                                 (1.14)                            -                            -                (0.43)                           4.49                      

(₹ in Mn)
Opening
balance as at Apr 1, 
2019

Addition on 
acquisition/ merger

Recognised
in profit or
loss*

Foreign exchange 
difference

MAT credit
utilised/ 
Created

Recognised
in/reclassified
from OCI

Closing
balance as at 
Mar 31, 2020

Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment, investment
property and intangible assets 0.50                              -                                 0.42                              -                               0.92                      
Impairment of Assets -                                -                                 0.00# 0.00#
Retirement benefits for employees 5.12                              -                                 (0.61)                            1.02                             5.53                      
Impact of Lease Accounting (IndAS 116) -                                -                                 0.02                              -                            -                -                               0.02                      
Provision for expenses -                                -                                 0.89                              -                            -                -                               0.89                      

Total deferred tax assets (A) 5.62                              -                                 0.72                              -                            -                1.02                             7.36                      

Offsetting of deferred tax (assets) with deferred
tax liabilities -                                 -                                -                            -                -                               -                        
Net Deferred tax (assets) 5.62                              7.36                      

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealised profit on investments etc. 2.15                              -                                 (0.85)                            -                            -                -                               1.30                      

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 2.15                              -                                 (0.85)                            -                            -                -                               1.30                      

Deferred tax assets (A - B) 3.47                              -                                 1.57                              -                            -                1.02                             6.06                      

# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet and changes recorded in income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2021 are as follows:

* Includes impact of ₹0.10/- mn in Statement of Profit and Loss due to change in income tax rates during the year ended March 31, 2020. Refer note below.
The Government of India vide Ordinance No. 15 of 2019 dated September 20, 2019 amended the income tax provisions by inserting section 115BAA. As per the amended provisions, the

Company has opted to pay tax at rate of 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess subject to the conditions mentioned under the amended provisions and recognised the effect of change by

revising the annual effective income tax rate. Due to reduced tax rate, the Company has re-measured its Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities as at April 1, 2019 and the impact of this change has

been fully recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account under "Tax expense" for the year ended March 31, 2020

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet and changes recorded in income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:
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Note 9. Property Plant and Equipment (₹ in Mn)

Particulars
Furniture 

Fixture
Office 

Equipment
Computers Total

Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2020 0.01                  0.19                    0.12                  0.32                      
Additions -                    0.04                  0.04                      
Additions related to acquisitions -                    -                      -                    -                        
As at March 31, 2021 0.01                  0.19                    0.16                  0.36                      
Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2020
Op. Dep. 0.01                  0.18                    0.08                  0.27                      
Depreciation for the year -                      0.02                  0.02                      
Deductions/Adjustments during the year -                    -                      -                    -                        
Upto March 31, 2021 0.01                  0.18                    0.10                  0.29                      
Net Block as at March 31, 2021 -                    0.01                    0.06                  0.07                      

Previous year 2019-20 (₹ in Mn)

Particulars
Furniture 

Fixture
Office 

Equipment
Computers Total

Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2019 0.01                  0.17                    0.09                  0.27                      
Additions -                    0.02                    0.03                  0.05                      
Additions related to acquisitions -                    -                      -                    -                        
As at March 31, 2020 0.01                  0.19                    0.12                  0.32                      
Depreciation -                    -                      -                    -                        
Upto April 01, 2019 -                    -                      -                    -                        
Op. Dep. 0.01                  0.12                    0.06                  0.19                      
Depreciation for the year -                    0.06                    0.02                  0.08                      
Deductions/Adjustments during the year -                    -                      -                    -                        
Upto March 31, 2020 0.01                  0.18                    0.08                  0.27                      
Net Block as at March 31, 2020 -                    0.01                    0.04                  0.05                      
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Note 10. Capital Work-in-Progress:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2021 
As at April 01, 2020 -                                 
Additions -                                 
Deductions -                                 
 As at Mar 31, 2021 -                                      

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020 
As at April 01, 2019 6.32                                    
Additions -                                      
Deductions 6.32                                    
 As at Mar 31, 2020 -                                      

Note 11. Other Intangible Assets
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020 
Software/Intangible assets (acquired)
Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2020 22.20                                  
Additions 1.91                                    
Deductions / adjustments during the year -                                      
As at Mar 31, 2021 24.11                                  
Amortisation
Upto April 01, 2020
Op. Dep. 15.88                                  
Amortisation for the year 5.31                                    
Deductions / adjustments during the year -                                      
Upto Mar 31, 2021 21.19                                  
Net Block as at Mar 31, 2021 2.92                                    

Previous year 2019-20
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  As at March 31, 2020 
Software/Intangible assets (acquired)
Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2019 19.40                                  
Additions 3.35                                    
Deductions / adjustments during the year 0.55                                    
As at Mar 31, 2020 22.20                                  
Amortisation
Upto April 01, 2019
Op. Dep. 8.89                                    
Amortisation for the year 6.99                                    
Deductions / adjustments during the year -                                      
Upto Mar 31, 2020 15.88                                  
Net Block as at Mar 31, 2020 6.32                                    
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Note 12.  Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases"
Change in Accounting Policy

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars  Premises  Vehicles Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 -                                                                            1.58 1.58                                    
Additions during the year 6.10                                                                               -   6.10                                    
Depreciation charge for the year (0.57)                                                                        (0.62) (1.19)                                   
Deletions during the year                                            -   -                                      
Balance as at March 31, 2021 5.53                                    0.96                                      6.49                                    

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars  Premises  Vehicles Total
Balance as at 01 April, 2020 -                                                                            1.73 1.73                                     
Additions during the year -                                                                            0.77 0.77                                     
Depreciation charge for the year -                                                                           (0.63) -0.63                                   
Deletions during the year -                                                                           (0.29) -0.29                                   
Balance as at March 31, 2021 -                                      1.59                                      1.59                                     

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2021: (₹ in Mn)
Particulars  Premises  Vehicles  Total 
Balance as at 01 April, 2020                                          -                                         1.67 1.67                                    
Additions                                      6.10                                            -   6.10                                    
Deletion                                          -                                              -   -                                      
Finance cost accrued during the period                                      0.13                                       0.13 0.26                                    
Payment of lease liabilities                                    (0.60)                                      (0.72) (1.32)                                   
Balance as at March 31, 2021 5.63                                    1.08                                      6.71                                    

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020: (₹ in Mn)
Particulars  Premises  Vehicles  Total 
Balance as at 01 April, 2019                                          -                                         1.73                                      1.73 
Additions                                          -                                         0.77                                      0.77 
Deletion                                          -                                        (0.29)                                    (0.29)
Finance cost accrued during the period                                          -                                         0.18                                      0.18 
Payment of lease liabilities                                          -                                        (0.72)                                    (0.72)
Balance as at March 31, 2020                                          -   1.67                                      1.67                                    

(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  Premises  Vehicles Total
Current lease liabilities                                      2.12                                       0.65 2.77                                     
Non-current lease liabilities                                      3.50                                       0.43 3.93                                     
Total                                      5.62                                       1.08 6.70                                     

Following is the break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease Liabilities for the period ended March 31, 2020: (₹ in Mn)

Particulars  Premises  Vehicles Total
Current lease liabilities -                                                                            0.60 0.60                                     
Non-current lease liabilities -                                                                            1.07 1.07                                     
Total                                          -                                         1.67 1.67                                     

(₹ in Mn)
Maturity analysis – contractual undiscounted cash flows

Particulars  Premises  Vehicles  Premises  Vehicles 
Less than one year                                      2.50                                       0.72                                       0.72 
One to five years                                      3.74                                       0.44                                       1.16 
More than five years                                          -                                              -                                              -   
Total undiscounted lease liabilities                                      6.24                                       1.16                                       1.88 
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position                                      5.62                                       1.08                                       1.67 

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars FY 2020-21  FY 2019-20 
Interest on lease liabilities 0.25                                       0.18 
Expenses relating to short-term leases 29.72                                     28.56 
Depreciation relating to leases 1.19                                       0.63 
Total                                   31.16                                     29.36 

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows (₹ in Mn)
Particulars  As at 

March 31, 2021 
 As at 

March 31, 2020 
Total cash outflow for leases 1.32                                       0.72 

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Following is the break up value of the Current and Non - Current Lease Liabilities for the period ended March 31, 2021:
As at March 31, 2021

 As at March 31, 2020 

 As at 
March 31, 2021 

 As at 
March 31, 2020 

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the period ended March 31, 2020:

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the period ended March 31, 2021:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 — "Leases" with effect from April 01, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases retrospectively. In accordance with 
the requirements of the standard, the lease liability at the present value of remaining lease payments at the date of initial application i.e. April 01, 2019 
amounting to ₹ 1.73 Mn has been recognized and "Right to use assets" has been recognized at an amount equal to the "Lease liability" as at that date. 
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Note 13. Other Non Financial Assets
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021
 As at March 31, 

2020 
Prepaid expenses - Unsecured 627.27                        642.94                        
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be
received – Unsecured 1.06                             4.34                             
Employee Advance against expenses -                               -                               
Others 13.33                           3.07                             
Total                          641.66                          650.35 

Note 14. Payables
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021
 As at March 31, 

2020 
Trade payables

(i)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises (Refer note 14.1)

                              -                                     -   

 (ii)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

 - Sundry creditors for expenses                            57.10                            32.16 
 - Accrued salaries and benefits                               0.59                               0.30 
 - Provision for expenses                          204.17                          249.44 

Total                          261.86                          281.90 

14.1. Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at 
the year end

- -

(b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 
at the year end

- -

(c) Amount of interest paid and payments made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

- -

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the Act

- -

(e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the year end

- -

(f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 
interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Act

- -

The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2016 (MSMED) on the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on
registration with the specified authority under MSMED:
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Note 15. Other Financial Liabilities
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Payable to holding co / group companies 
(Refer Note 33) 54.33                                 99.98                                     
Security deposit 0.25                                   0.25                                       
Total 54.58                                 100.23                                  

Note 16. Provisions:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
 - Gratuity (Refer Note 25.1) 22.99                                 22.01                                     
Total 22.99                                 22.01                                    

 Note 17. Other Non Financial Liabilities:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021  As at March 31, 2020 
Statutory remittances 137.22                               30.68                                     
Total 137.22                               30.68                                    
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Note 18. Share Capital:
  

Authorised :  
Equity Shares of  ₹ 10 each 3,25,00,000             325.00                         3,25,00,000           325.00                        

 Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up:  Equity Shares 
of  ₹ 10 each fully paid 3,21,00,000             321.00                         3,21,00,000           321.00                        
Less: -                               
Total 3,21,00,000             321.00                        3,21,00,000           321.00                        

(b)       Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

 No. of shares  Amount 
At the beginning of the year 3,21,00,000             321.00                         3,21,00,000           321.00                        
Add: Issued during the year                                 -                                      -   -                           -                               
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,21,00,000             321.00                        3,21,00,000           321.00                        

(c)   Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(d)       Details of shares held by Holding Company:

 No. of shares % holding  No. of shares % holding

IIFL Wealth Management Limited & its nominees
3,21,00,000             100% 3,21,00,000           100%

(e)       Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

 No. of shares % holding  No. of shares % holding

IIFL Wealth Management Limited & its nominees
3,21,00,000             100% 3,21,00,000           100%

Note 19. Other Equity:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2021
As at March 31, 2020

Securities premium 204.00                      204.00                         
(b) Others (specify nature)
Retained earnings 1,000.95                   1,934.18                     
Total 1,204.95                  2,138.18                     

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2020

(a)       The authorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises of equity shares having a par value of ₹10/- as 
follows:

(f)      During the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not issued any equity shares 
without payment being received in cash, bonus shares and has not bought back any equity shares.

As at March 31, 2021

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is 

entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of Interim dividend. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2021
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Note 20. Dividend & Distribution income on investments
(₹ in Mn)

Particualrs FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Distribution income on investments 0.00# 0.00#
TOTAL 0.00# 0.00#
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

Note 21. Fee and Commission Income
(₹ in Mn)

Particualrs FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Management fees from Mutual fund 95.22                      54.55                      
Management fees from AIF and VCF 1,554.72                 1,299.59                
Management fees from clients 842.03                    487.54                    `
Advisory Fees (Refer Note 33) 32.55                      8.64                        
TOTAL 2,524.52                1,850.32                

Note 22. Other Income
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Interest income 132.36                    138.92                    
Fair value changes of investments:
           -Realised 16.48                      19.94                      
           -Unrealised 10.43                      (1.04)                       
Profit on sale of Assets -                           0.00#
Total 159.27                    157.82                   
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

Note 23. Finance Cost
(₹ in Mn)

 On financial 
liabilities 

measured at fair 
value through 
profit or loss  

 On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised cost  

Total

 On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 On financial 
liabilities 

measured at 
amortised cost  

Total

Interest on borrowings (Refer note 33) -                           4.55                        4.55                 -                     5.06                   5.06              
Other interest expense -                           0.25                        0.25                 -                     0.17                   0.17              
Total -                           4.80                        4.80                 -                     5.23                  5.23              

Note 24. Impairment On Financial Instruments
(₹ in Mn)

 On financial 
instruments 
measured at fair 
value through OCI  

 On financial 
instruments 
measured at 
amortised cost  

 On financial 
instruments 
measured at 
fair value 
through OCI  

 On financial 
instruments 
measured at 
amortised cost  

Trade Receivables -                           0.00# -                   0.00#
Total -                           0.00# -                   0.00#
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

Note 25. Employee Benefit Expenses (Refer Note 33)
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Salaries and wages 388.54                    409.98                    
Contribution to provident and other funds 
(Refer Note 25.2) 11.42                      12.72                      
Share based payments to employees 235.31                    110.33                    
Staff welfare expenses 4.48                         8.38                        
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 25.1) 5.18                         4.59                        
Total 644.93                    546.00                   

Particulars 

FY 2019-20

Particulars 

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2020-21
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25.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) 

Particulars
 For The Period  
01/04/2020 - 
31/03/2021 

 For The Period  
01/04/2019 - 
31/03/2020 

 Type of benefit  Gratuity  Gratuity 
 Country  India   India  
 Reporting currency  INR  INR 

 Reporting standard 
 Indian Accounting 

Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) 
 Indian Accounting 

Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) 

 Funding status  Unfunded  Unfunded 
 Starting period 01-04-2020 01-04-2019
 Date of reporting 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
 Period of reporting  12 Months  12 Months 

Assumptions
 Expected return on plan assets  N.A.  N.A. 
 Rate of discounting 6.57% 6.04%
 Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%

 Rate of employee turnover 
 For service 4 years and 

below 15% p.a. & 
thereafter 7.50% p.a. 

 For service 4 years and 
below 15% p.a. & 

thereafter 7.50% p.a. 

 Mortality rate during employment 
 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 

 Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 

 Mortality rate after employment  N.A.  N.A. 

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation
 Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period                                  22.01                                  17.58 
 Interest cost                                    1.33                                    1.34 
 Current service cost                                    3.85                                    3.25 
 Liability transferred in/ acquisitions                                    2.71                                    2.04 
 (Liability transferred out/ divestments)                                   (1.60)                                   (3.40)
 (Benefit paid directly by the employer)                                   (3.61)                                   (2.87)
 Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in
 financial assumptions 

                                  (1.01)                                    2.76 

 Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience                                   (0.69)                                    1.31 
 Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period                                  22.99                                  22.01 

 Amount recognized in the balance sheet 
 (Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period)                                 (22.99)                                 (22.01)
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period                                         -                                           -   
 Funded status (surplus/ (deficit))                                 (22.99)                                 (22.01)
 Net (liability)/asset recognized in the balance sheet                                 (22.99)                                 (22.01)

 Net interest cost for current period 
 Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period                                  22.01                                  17.58 
 (fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period)                                         -   
 Net liability/(asset) at the beginning                                  22.01                                  17.58 

 Interest cost                                    1.33                                    1.34 
 (Interest income)                                         -                                           -   
 Net interest cost for current period                                    1.33                                    1.34 

Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss for current period
 Current service cost                                    3.85                                    3.25 
 Net interest cost                                    1.33                                    1.34 
 Expenses recognized                                     5.18                                    4.59 
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Expenses recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI) for current period

 Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the period                                   (1.70)                                    4.07 
 Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 
 Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in oci                                   (1.70)                                    4.07 

 Balance sheet reconciliation 
 Opening net liability                                  22.01                                  17.58 
 Expenses recognized in statement of profit or loss                                    5.18                                    4.59 
 Expenses recognized in oci                                   (1.70)                                    4.07 
 Net liability/(asset) transfer in                                    2.70                                    2.06 
 Net (liability)/asset transfer out                                   (1.59)                                   (3.42)
 (Benefit paid directly by the employer)                                   (3.61)                                   (2.87)
 Net liability/(asset) recognized in the balance sheet                                  22.99                                  22.01 

 Other details 
 No of active members                                117.00                                      113 
 Per month salary for active members                                  11.40                                  10.44 
Weighted average duration of pbo                                  10.00 10                                      
Average expected fs                                    8.00 9                                        
 Projected benefit obligation (pbo)                                  22.99                                  22.01 
 Prescribed contribution for next year (12 months)                                         -   

 Net Interest Cost for Next Year 
 Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period                                  22.99                                  22.01 
 (Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period)                                         -                                           -   
 Net Liability/(Asset) at the End of the Period                                  22.99                                  22.01 

 Interest Cost                                    1.51                                    1.33 
 (Interest Income)                                         -                                           -   
 Net Interest Cost for Next Year                                    1.51                                    1.33 

 Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year 
 Current Service Cost                                    3.82                                    3.85 
 Net Interest Cost                                    1.51                                    1.33 
 (Expected Contributions by the Employees)                                         -   
 Expenses Recognized                                     5.33                                    5.18 

Maturity analysis of the benefit payments
1st following year                                    1.42                                    1.41 
2nd following year                                    1.58                                    1.32 
3rd following year                                    1.84                                    1.53 
4th following year                                    1.86                                    1.69 
5th following year                                    3.12                                    1.69 
Sum of years 6 to 10                                    8.55                                    8.43 
Sum of years 11 and above                                  25.34                                  25.56 

Sensitivity analysis
PBO on current assumptions                                  22.99                                  22.01 

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting                                   (1.72)                                   (1.80)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting                                    1.97                                    2.09 
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase                                    1.18                                    1.28 
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase                                   (1.18)                                   (1.29)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover                                   (0.02)                                   (0.12)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover                                    0.01                                    0.11 

25.2 Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company has recognised the following amounts as an expense and included in the Employee Benefit Expenses.                                   

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Contribution to provident fund                                  11.42 12.72                                 
Contribution to ESIC                                         -   -                                     
Contribution to labour welfare fund 0.00# 0.00#
Total 11.42                                12.72                                
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

The above mentioned plans are valued by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The Company contributes to recognised provident fund for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required 
to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs to fund the benefits.
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Note 26. Other Expenses:-
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars  FY 2020-21  FY 2019-20 

Operations and Fund Management expenses 132.05                            18.91                              
Rent and energy cost (Refer note 33) 32.97                              33.68                              
Insurance 1.18                                1.01                                
Repairs & Maintenance 0.17                                0.24                                
Marketing, Advertisement and Business promotion expenses 48.00                              28.10                              
Travelling & Conveyance 3.20                                16.98                              
Legal & professional fees 96.38                              22.01                              
Communication 2.83                                3.30                                
Software Charges / Technology Cost* 20.89                              29.55                              
Office & Other Expenses 51.12                              46.07                              
Directors' fees and commission (Refer note 33) 3.34                                3.31                                
Remuneration to Auditors :
            Audit Fees 0.90                                0.90                                
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses & Donation (Refer Note 31) 12.41                              8.51                                
Total 405.44                           212.57                           
* includes write off of  ₹ Nil (FY 2020-21) and ₹6.32 Mn (FY 2019-20)
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Note 27. Income taxes
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes"
(a) Major components of tax expense/ (income)

(₹ in Mn)
Sr. No. Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

(a) Profit and Loss section:
(i) Current Income tax :

Current income tax expense 278.57                  203.95                 
Effect of previously unrecognised tax losses and tax offsets used during the current 
year -                        -                        
Tax expense in respect of earlier years 3.24                      1.39                      

281.81                  205.34                 
(ii) Deferred Tax:

Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.14                      (1.47)                    
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax rate (0.10)                    

1.14                      (1.57)                    

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss [(i)+(ii)] 282.95                  203.77                 

(b) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section:
(i) Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(A) Current tax expense/(income):
On re-measurement of defined benefit plans -                        -                        

-                        -                        
(B) Deferred tax expense/(income):

On re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.43                      1.02                      

0.43                      1.02                      

Income tax expense reported in the other comprehensive income [(i)+(ii)] 0.43                      1.02                      

(b) Reconciliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in India:
(₹ in Mn)

Sr. No. Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
(a) Profit/(loss) before tax 1,097.90               802.32                 
(b) Income tax expense at tax rate applicable to the company 276.32                  201.93                 
(c ) (i) Tax on income subject to lower tax rate

     (A)  Gains on investments (including fair valuation) (1.80)                     (0.87)                    
(d) (ii) Tax on Income exempt from Tax

     (A)  Income from Investments (Including tax sufferred income on investment in AIF) (0.00)                     (0.00)                    
(iii) Tax on expense not tax deductible
     (B)  Expenses not allowable as tax deductible as per tax laws 5.47                      1.07                      
(iv)  Effect on deferred tax due to change in Income tax (0.10)                    
(v)  Tax expense in respect of earlier years 3.24                      1.39                      
(vi) Tax effect on various other items (0.28)                     0.35                      
Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) to (xii)] 6.63                      1.84                     

(e) Tax expense recognised during the year 282.95                  203.77                 
Effective tax rate 25.77% 25.40%
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Note 28. Earnings Per Share:

Basic and diluted earnings per share [“EPS”] computed in accordance with INDAS 33 ‘Earnings per share'.
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars
FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Face value of equity shares in ₹fully paid up 10.00                     10.00                       
BASIC
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 814.95                   598.56                     
Weighted average number of shares subscribed B 32.10                     32.10                       
Face value of equity shares (in ₹) fully paid 10.00                     10.00                       
Basic EPS (₹) A/B 25.39                     18.65                       

DILUTED
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 814.95                   598.56                     
Weighted number of shares subscribed B 32.10                     32.10                       
Add: Potential equity shares on account of conversion of employee 
stock option

C -                           

Weighted average number of shares outstanding D=B+C 32.10                     32.10                       
Diluted EPS (₹) A/D 25.39                     18.65                       
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Note 29.  Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures"
Financial Risk Management

29A.1. Credit Risk

1) Trade and other receivables

Movement in the Expected Credit Loss/ Impairment Loss allowance with regards to trade receivables is as follows :

Particulars
Year Ended 

March 31, 2021
Year Ended 

March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year  0.00#                                          -   
Movement in expected credit loss allowances on  0.00#  0.00# 
Balance at the end of the year  0.00#  0.00# 
# Amount less than ₹10,000/-

2) Others

29B. Liquidity Risk

(₹ in Mn)

Financial liabilities  Total  Less than 1 months 
 1 months to 6 

months 
 6 months to 1 year 

 Between 1 to 5 
years 

Derivative financial instruments                                          -   
Trade Payables                                  261.86 0.17                                   261.27                    0.42                          -                         
Debt Securities                                          -   -                                     -                           -                            -                         
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)                                          -   -                                     -                           -                            -                         
Subordinated Liabilities                                          -   -                                     -                           -                            -                         
Other financial liabilities                                    54.58 0.08                                   54.33                      0.18                       
Total                                  316.44                                     0.25 315.60                    0.42                          0.18                       

(₹ in Mn)

Financial liabilities  Total  Less than 1 months 
 1 months to 6 

months 
 6 months to 1 year 

 Between 1 to 5 
years 

Derivative financial instruments                                          -   

Trade Payables                                  281.90 0.30                                   278.85                    2.75                          -                         
Debt Securities                                          -   -                                     -                           -                            -                         

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)                                          -   
-                                     -                           -                            -                         

Subordinated Liabilities                                          -   -                                     -                           -                            -                         
Other financial liabilities                                  100.23 -                                     100.05                    -                            0.18                       
Total                                  382.13                                     0.30 378.90                    2.75                          0.18                       

For Finance Lease Obligation maturity refer note no. 12

29C. Market Risk

The Company's trade receivables primarily include receivables from mutual funds, alternative Investment funds, customers under Portfolio Management scheme and Advisory 
services arrangements. The Company has made lifetime expected credit loss provision based on provision matrix which takes into account historical experience in collection and 
credit losses.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its short-term financial obligations. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities.

As at March 31, 2020

The credit risk in respect of Investments in Alternate Investment Funds and in units of funds classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss is priced in the fair value of the
respective instruments. 

In addition to the above, balances and deposits with banks, loans, investments in Alternate Investment Funds and in units of funds and other financial assets also have exposure 
to credit risk.
Credit risk on balances and deposits with banks is limited as these balances are generally held with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings and/or with capital 
adequacy ratio above the prescribed regulatory limits.

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in futures cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument.

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluate and exercises control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury

department recommends risk management objectives and policies, which are approved by senior management and the Audit/ Investment committee. The activities of this

department include management of cash resources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limit and policies.

Credit risk on loans is considered insignificant considering the loan is given to group companies.

Credit Risk on Other Financial assets is considered insignificant considering the nature of such assets and absence of counterparty risk.

The following table shows the maturity profile of Financial liabilities:

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and other financials liabilities. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other

receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans, investments and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations and Investment.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk etc. The Company senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company senior

management is overseen by the audit committee with respect to risks and facilitates appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Financial risks are

identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing key risks, which

are summarised below.

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk assessement on various 
components is described below:

As at March 31, 2021
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29C.1 Currency Risk

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars  USD  HKD  AED  CAD  SGD OMR
Cash and cash equivalents                                      0.00                                     0.01                          0.00                            0.01                             -                      0.08 
Trade receivables                                    49.55                                          -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   
Other financial assets                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   
Trade payables                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   

(₹ in Mn)
Particulars  USD  HKD  AED  CAD  SGD OMR
Cash and cash equivalents                                      0.00                                     0.01                          0.00                            0.01                             -                      0.09 
Trade receivables                                    21.84                                          -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   
Other financial assets                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   
Trade payables                                      1.44                                          -                                 -                                  -                               -                           -   

Below is the sensitivity analysis for the year considering 1% appreciation/(depreciation):
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars 2020-21  2019-20 
Increase 
Impact on Profit and Loss after tax                                      0.37                                     0.18 
Impact on Equity                                      0.37                                     0.18 
Decrease 
Impact on Profit and Loss after tax                                    (0.37)                                   (0.18)
Impact on Equity                                    (0.37)                                   (0.18)

29C.2 Interest rate risk

29C.3.  Other Price Risk (including Equity Linked Investments)

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities subject to  price risk is as below:
(₹ in Mn)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Financial Assets
Investments 650.52                                29.31                                 

650.52                                29.31                                 
Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments -                                      -                                     
Debt securities -                                      -                                     

-                                      -                                     

Sensitivty to change in prices of the above assets and liabilites are measured on the following parameters

Investments in AIFs / MFs /Equity and others 
1% change in the NAV/
Price

Invesments in Debt securities are linked to
underlying interest/price movements in the
interest bearing securities 

0.25% change in yield
over duration of the
instruments considering
PV(0,1) as a measure of
change in value

Below is the sensativity analysis for the year : (₹ in Mn)
FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20

Increase 
Impact on Profit and Loss after tax                                    (4.52)                                     0.22 
Impact on Equity                                    (4.52)                                     0.22 
Decrease 
Impact on Profit and Loss after tax                                      4.52                                   (0.22)
Impact on Equity                                      4.52                                   (0.22)

29D.Capital Management

The Company has measured interest rate risk sensitivity on financial assets and liabilities on financial instruments accounted for on amortised cost basis. Since all loans and 
borrowings are fixed rate there is no interest rate sensitivity

The carrying amount of Financial assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk for FY 2019-2020 are as below:

The Company does not run a proprietary trading position in foreign currencies and foreign currency denominated instruments.However the company does have some exposure to

foreign currencies through its business operations or by mainitaing cash balance and Fixed deposits in currencies other than reporting/functional currencies.

Other price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments which are fair valued and exposes the Company to price risks.

The Company’s capital management is intended to create value for shareholders. The assessment of Capital level and requirements are assessed having regard to long-and short 
term strategies of the Company and regulatory capital requirements of its businesses and constituent entities. 

The carrying amount of Financial assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk for FY 2020-2021 are as below:
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 (₹ in Mn) 

 Measure at amorised 
cost 

 Measured at fair value 
through profit or 

loss(P/L) 

 Measured at fair 
value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income (OCI)  Total 
Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents                                    84.06                                          -                                 -                           84.06 
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above                                    16.98                                          -                                 -                           16.98 
(c) Derivative financial instruments                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(d) Receivables                                -   

(I) Trade receivables                                  731.76                                          -                                 -                         731.76 
(II) Other receivables                                      3.59                                          -                                 -                              3.59 

(e) Loans                                      5.39                                          -                                 -                              5.39 
(f) Investments                                          -                                   650.52                               -                         650.52 
(g) Other financial assets                                      1.85                                          -                                 -                              1.85 

Total                                  843.63                                 650.52                               -                      1,494.15 
Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative financial instruments                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(b) Payables                                -   

(I)Trade payables                                -   
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   

     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises                                  261.86                                          -                                 -                         261.86 

(c) Debt securities                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities)                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(e) Financial Lease Obligation                                      6.71                                          -                                 -                              6.71 
(f) Other financial liabilities                                    54.58                                          -                                 -                           54.58 

Total 323.14                                -                                     -                           323.14                     
 (₹ in Mn) 

 Measure at amorised 
cost 

 Measured at fair value 
through profit or 

loss(P/L) 

 Measured at fair 
value through 

other 
comprehensive 

income (OCI)  Total 
Financial Assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents                                    29.58                                          -                                 -                           29.58 
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(c) Derivative financial instruments                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(d) Receivables                                -   

(I) Trade receivables                                  650.57                                          -                                 -                         650.57 
(II) Other receivables                                      9.89                                          -                                 -                              9.89 

(e) Loans                              1,521.24                    1,521.24 
(f) Investments                                          -                                     29.31                               -                           29.31 
(g) Other financial assets                                      0.10                                          -                                 -                              0.10 

Total                              2,211.38                                   29.31                               -                      2,240.69 
Financial Liabilities

(a) Derivative financial instruments                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(b) Payables                                -   

(I)Trade payables                                -   
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   

     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises                                  281.90                                          -                                 -                         281.90 

(c) Debt securities                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securities)                                          -                                            -                                 -                                  -   
(e) Financial Lease Obligation                                      1.67                                          -                                 -                              1.67 
(f) Other financial liabilities                                  100.23                                          -                                 -                         100.23 

Total 383.79                                -                                     -                           383.79                     

29E.1. Fair values of financial instruments
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
– Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments. This include NAVs of the schemes of mutual funds.
– Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
– Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are not observable and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 
The Company uses widely recognised valuation methods to determine the fair value of common and simple financial instruments, such as interest rate swaps, optins, which use
only observable market data as far as practicable. Observable prices or model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange-traded
derivatives and simple OTC derivatives such as interest rate swaps. 

Sr No. Particulars

As at 31st March 2020

29E. Category Wise Classification for applicable Financial Assets and Liabilities

Sr No. Particulars

As at 31st March 2021
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29E. 1a. Financial instruments measured at fair value – Fair value hierarchy

(₹ in Mn)

Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total  
Financial Assets
Investments in Mutual funds                                    38.89                                          -                                 -                           38.89 
Investment in NCD                                 610.98                               -                         610.98 
Investments in Equity Shares #                                          -                                            -                            0.50                            0.50 
Investments in Alternate Investment Funds *                                          -                                            -                            0.15                            0.15 
Total Assets                                    38.89                                 610.98                          0.65                       650.52 

(₹ in Mn)

Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total  
Financial Assets
Investments in Mutual funds                                    28.67                                          -                                 -                           28.67 
Investments in Equity Shares #                                          -                                            -                            0.50                            0.50 
Investments in Alternate Investment Funds *                                          -                                            -                            0.14                            0.14 
Total Assets                                    28.67                                          -                            0.64                         29.31 

# The fair values are determined basis the independent third party valuations.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Particulars  As at 31st March 2021  As at 31st March 2020 
Opening Balance 0.64                                    0.79                                   
Total gains or losses
 - in profit or loss (0.00)                                   
MTM Gain / ( Loss ) 0.00                                   
Purchases 0.01                                    
Disposal/ Settlements (0.00)                                   (0.15)                                  
Transfer out of Level 3
Closing Balance 0.65                                    0.64                                   

37E. 1b Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(₹ in Mn)

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 84.06                                  84.06                                 29.58                      29.58                        
Bank balance other than above 16.98                                  16.98                                 -                           -                            
Receivables 
(I) Trade receivables 731.76                                731.76                               650.57                    650.57                     
(II) Other receivables 3.59                                    3.59                                   9.89                         9.89                          
Loans 5.39                                    5.39                                   1,521.24                 1,521.24                  
Other financial assets 1.85                                    1.85                                   0.10                         0.10                          
Financial Liabilities
(I)Trade payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises -                                      -                                     -                           -                            

     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 261.86                                261.86                               281.90                    281.90                     
Debt securities -                                      -                                     -                           -                            
Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                                      -                                     -                           -                            
Financial Lease Obligation 6.71                                    6.71                                   1.67                         1.67                          
Other financial liabilities 54.58                                  54.58                                 100.23                    100.23                     

The carrying amounts of trade payables, other financial liabilities and lease liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, trade and other receivables, loans and other financial assets are considered to be the same as their 
fair values.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Financial Assets and liabilities which are 
measured at amortised cost for which fair 
values are disclosed

As at 31st March 2020

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

* The fair values of these investments are determined basis the NAV published by the funds.

Financial instruments measured at fair value 
Recurring fair value measurements at 31.03.2020

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is 
categorised.
The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financial position. The fair values include any deferred differences between the transaction price and the fair 
value on initial recognition when the fair value is based on a valuation technique that uses unobservable inputs.

Financial instruments measured at fair value 
Recurring fair value measurements at 31.03.2021

As at 31st March 2021
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Note 31. Corporate Social Responsibility

Note 32. Segment Reporting

Note 30. The Company operates from and uses the premises, infrastructure and other facilities and services as provided
to it by its holding Company/group companies, which are termed as ‘Shared Services’. Hitherto, such shared services
consisting of administrative and other revenue expenses paid for by the Company were identified and
recovered/recoverable from the Company based on reasonable management estimates, which are constantly refined in
the light of additional knowledge gained relevant to such estimation. These expenses are recovered on an actual basis
and the estimates are used only where actual expenses were difficult to determine.

During the year, the Company has spent its entire liability ₹12.41 Mn as required to be spent as per section 135 of the
Companies Act 2013 in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). The Company is committed to supporting
development of the country by contributing in achieving sustainable development goals and all its activities are directed
towards this. Going forward these projects will be consolidated and scaled to achieve a larger and deeper impact. The key
focus areas includes education, community awareness, sports, environmental sustainability, and health. Refer note 33 on
Related Party Disclosure

In the opinion of the management, there is only one reportable business segment - Asset Management business as

envisaged by Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Accordingly, no separate

disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. Secondary segment

based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates primarily in India and the Company perceives that

there is no significant difference in its risk and returns in operating from different geographic areas within India.
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Note 33. Related Party Disclosures:

a) List of Related Parties:

Meenakshi Tower LLP (Joint Venture of IIFL Management Services Limited)

India Alternatives Investment Advisors Private Limited resigned w.e.f. 31.05.2020

*IIFL Private Wealth (Hongkong) Limited has completed voluntary liquidation
**IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited is now Wholly Owned Subsidiary of IIFL Wealth Finance Limited with effect from April 24, 2020.

IIFL Trustee Limited
IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Portfolio Managers Limited)

Related party disclosures for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Nature of relationship Name of party

Holding Company IIFL Wealth Management Limited

Director/ Key Managerial Personel Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. March 21, 2020)
Mr. Pranab Pattanayak, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. March 21, 2020)
Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani
Mr. Kumar Sharadindu (appointed w.e.f. January 22, 2020)
Ms. Smita Aggarwal (appointed w.e.f. March 11, 2020)
Mr. Anup Maheshwari  (Resigned as Joint Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. March 19, 2021)

Mr. Ravi Sethurathnam – Independent Non-Executive Director(Appointed w.e.f. February 25, 
2021)

Mr. Prashasta Seth, Chief Executive Officer (Resigned with effect from December 31, 2020)

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited 

Mr. Manoj Shenoy, Whole Time Director (Appointed w.e.f. March 22,2021), Chief Executive 
Officer (Appointed w.e.f.February 02, 2021 )

Fellow Subsidiaries

IIFL  Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Distribution Services 
IIFL Wealth Securities IFSC Limited (w.e.f June 22, 2018)

IIFL Wealth Altiore Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Altiore Advisors Limited)

IIFL Wealth Advisors (India) Limited (amalgamated with IIFL Wealth Management Ltd w.e.f 
December 27, 2019)
IIFL Wealth Employee Welfare benefit Trust (w.e.f August 01, 2018)
IIFL Private Wealth Management (Dubai) Limited
IIFL Inc.
IIFL Private Wealth Hong Kong Limited *
IIFL Asset Management (Mauritius) Limited (Formerly Known as IIFL Private Wealth (Mauritius) 
IIFL (Asia) Pte. Limited
IIFL Capital Pte. Limited
IIFL Securities Pte. Limited
IIFL Capital (Canada) Limited
IIFLW CSR Foundation (w.e.f Jan 20, 2020)
IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited (Formerly known as L & T Capital Markets Limited) **
IIFL Finance Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Holdings Limited)

Mrs. Ami Yatin Shah (Spouse of Mr. Yatin Shah)

IIFL Securities Limited (Formerly known as India Infoline Limited)
IIFL Commodities Limited (Formerly known as India Infoline Commodities Limited)
IIFL Insurance Brokers Limited (Formerly known as India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited)
IIFL Management Services Limited (Formerly known as India Infoline Insurance Services 
Limited)
IIFL Wealth (UK) Limited
IIFL Capital Inc.
IIFL Facilities Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Real Estate Limited)
IIFL Securities Services IFSC Limited
IIFL Corporate Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Asset Reconstruction Limited)
IIFL Home Finance Limited
Samasta Microfinance Limited (w.e.f March 01, 2017)

Shreyans Foundation LLP 
FIH Mauritius Investment Limited
India Infoline Foundation
5paisa Capital Limited
5paisa P2P Limited
5paisa Insurance Brokers Limited
5paisa Trading Limited
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Limited
Mr. Karan Bhagat
Mrs. Shilpa Bhagat (Spouse of Mr. Karan Bhagat)
Mr. Varun Bhagat ( Brother of Mr. Karan Bhagat )
Kush Family Private Trust

Naykia Realty Private Limited

Naykia Family Private Trust

Mr. Nirmal Jain

Kyra Family Private Trust
Kyrush Investments
Bhagat Family Private Trust
Kyrush Family Private Trust
Kyrush Trading & Investments Private Limited (Formerly known as Kyrush Realty Private 
Mr. Yatin Shah

Mr. Prakashchandra Shah (Father of Mr. Yatin Shah)
Yatin Prakash Shah HUF
Yatin Investments

Mrs. Madhu Jain (Spouse of Mr. Nirmal Jain)
Ardent Impex Private Limited
Orpheous Trading Private Limited
Sunder Bhawar Ventures Private Limited
Nirmal Madhu Family Private Trust
MNJ Consultants Private Limited
Ms. Aditi Athavankar (Spouse of Mr. Venkataraman Rajamani)
Kalki Family Private Trust

Other Related Parties 

Prakash Shah Family Private Trust
Naysa Shah Family Private Trust
Kiaan Shah Family Private Trust

 Financial advisors (India)Private Limited
CDE Real Estate Private Limited Resigned w.e.f January 19, 2021



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 33. Related Party Disclosures:
b) Significant Transactions with Related Parties (₹ in Mn)
Nature of Transaction Director/Key 

Managerial Person
Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Other Related 

Parties
Total

Purchase of Investments
-                            -                                310.04                          -                              310.04                         
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

Sale of Investments
-                            -                                302.46                          -                              302.46                         
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                224.24                          -                              224.24                         
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                95.90                            -                              95.90                            
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

Dividend Paid
-                            1,749.45                      -                                 -                              1,749.45                      
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

ICD Given
-                            9,210.00                      -                                 -                              9,210.00                      
-                            (7,354.30)                     -                                 -                              (7,354.30)                     
-                            -                                3,920.00                       -                              3,920.00                      

-                            -                                (2,027.10)                     -                              (2,027.10)                     
-                            -                                2,790.00                       -                              2,790.00                      
-                            -                                (540.00)                         -                              (540.00)                        
-                            -                                510.00                          -                              510.00                         
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

ICD Received back
-                            10,710.00                    -                                 -                              10,710.00                    
-                            (7,240.50)                     -                                 -                              (7,240.50)                     

-                            -                                3,920.00                       -                              3,920.00                      

-                            -                                (2,027.10)                     -                              (2,027.10)                     
-                            -                                2,790.00                       -                              2,790.00                      
-                            -                                (540.00)                         -                              (540.00)                        
-                            -                                510.00                          -                              510.00                         
-                            -                                -                              -                                

ICD Taken -                                
-                            2,557.00                      -                                 -                              2,557.00                      
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                1,820.00                       -                              1,820.00                      
-                            -                                (3,567.20)                     -                              (3,567.20)                     

ICD Repaid -                                
-                            2,557.00                      -                                 -                              2,557.00                      
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                1,820.00                       -                              1,820.00                      
-                            -                                (3,567.20)                     -                              (3,567.20)                     

-                                
Interest Income

-                            77.83                            -                                 -                              77.83                            
-                            (132.76)                        -                                 -                              (132.76)                        

-                            -                                5.80                               -                              5.80                              

-                            -                                (2.60)                             -                              (2.60)                             
-                            -                                1.90                               -                              1.90                              
-                            -                                (0.03)                             -                              (0.03)                             
-                            -                                0.88                               -                              0.88                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee Services Limited



Nature of Transaction Director/Key 
Managerial Person

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Other Related 
Parties

Total

Interest Expenses
-                            4.20                              -                                 -                              4.20                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                0.35                               -                              0.35                              
-                            -                                (5.06)                             -                              (5.06)                             

-                                
Fees/Expenses incurred/Reimbursed For Services Procured

-                            -                                -                                 47.00                          47.00                            
-                            -                                -                                 (124.45)                      (124.45)                        
-                            27.80                            -                                 -                              27.80                            
-                            (26.61)                          -                                 -                              (26.61)                          

-                            -                                39.58                            -                              39.58                            

-                            -                                (34.97)                           -                              (34.97)                          
-                            -                                67.07                            -                              67.07                            
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                1.03                               -                              1.03                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                39.85                            -                              39.85                            
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

-                            -                                -                                 (1.45)                           (1.45)                             
-                            -                                19.47                            -                              19.47                            

-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
Fees Earned For Services (including Brokerage) rendered

-                            -                                32.55                            -                              32.55                            
-                            -                                (8.64)                             -                              (8.64)                             

Remuneration to KMP's
12.75                       -                                -                                 -                              12.75                            

(24.93)                      -                                -                                 -                              (24.93)                          
45.67                       -                                -                                 -                              45.67                            

(40.03)                      -                                -                                 -                              (40.03)                          
5.42                          5.42                              

-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 (1.49)                           (1.49)                             

Gratuity Expense
0.18                          -                                -                                 -                              0.18                              

(0.39)                        -                                -                                 -                              (0.39)                             
Sitting Fees/Commission To Directors

-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
(1.45)                        -                                -                                 -                              (1.45)                             

-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
(1.38)                        -                                -                                 -                              (1.38)                             
1.59                          -                                -                                 -                              1.59                              

(0.33)                        -                                -                                 -                              (0.33)                             
1.59                          -                                -                                 -                              1.59                              

(0.16)                        -                                -                                 -                              (0.16)                             
0.17                          -                                -                                 -                              0.17                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

Allocation / Reimbursement of expenses Paid
-                            19.97                            -                                 -                              19.97                            
-                            (37.15)                          -                                 -                              (37.15)                          
-                            -                                0.25                               -                              0.25                              
-                            -                                (0.32)                             -                              (0.32)                             
-                            -                                -                                 0.02                            0.02                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 (2.27)                           (2.27)                             

Allocation / Reimbursement of expenses Received
Other funds received

-                            -                                1.66                               -                              1.66                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            1.04                              -                                 -                              1.04                              
-                            (1.70)                             -                                 -                              (1.70)                             
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                (0.31)                             -                              (0.31)                             
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                0.01                               -                              0.01                              
-                            -                                (0.12)                             -                              (0.12)                             
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                1.82                               -                              1.82                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

India Infoline Foundation

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)

IIFL Securities Limited

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited (Formerly known as L & T Capital 
Markets Limited)
IIFL Capital Pte Limited

Smita Aggarwal 

IIFLW CSR Foundation

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)

Prashastha Seth

Anup Maheshwari

Manoj Shenoy

Varun Bhagat

Anup Maheshwari

Homai A. Daruwalla

Pranab Pattanaik

Kumar Sharadindu 

IIFL Trustee Limited

Ravi Sethurathnam

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)
IIFL Facilities Services Limited 

IIFL Management Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited (Formerly known as L & T Capital 
Markets Limited)
IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)



Nature of Transaction Director/Key 
Managerial Person

Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Other Related 
Parties

Total

Other funds Paid
-                            235.82                         -                                 -                              235.82                         
-                            (111.19)                        -                                 -                              (111.19)                        
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                0.02                               -                              0.02                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                0.74                               -                              0.74                              
-                            -                                (15.80)                           -                              (15.80)                          
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                (0.01)                             -                              (0.01)                             
-                            -                                0.37                               -                              0.37                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              
-                            -                                -                                 0.59                            0.59                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

                      Amount due to / from related parties (Closing Balances):                                                                                               (₹ in Mn)

Nature of Transaction 
Key Managerial 

Person
Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries Other Related 

Parties
Total

Sundry payables -                                
-                                

-                            -                                -                                 15.25                          15.25                            
-                            -                                -                                 (29.49)                        (29.49)                          
-                            44.04                            -                                 -                              44.04                            
-                            (79.19)                          -                                 -                              (79.19)                          
-                            -                                10.28                            -                              10.28                            
-                            -                                (10.73)                           -                              (10.73)                          
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                (0.04)                             -                              (0.04)                             
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 (0.22)                           (0.22)                             
-                            -                                23.21                            -                              23.21                            
-                            -                                (15.68)                           -                              (15.68)                          
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 (2.47)                           (2.47)                             

Sundry receivables
1.88                               1.88                              

-                            -                                0.15                               -                              0.15                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                24.58                            -                              24.58                            
-                            -                                (4.73)                             -                              (4.73)                             

Payable To Broker a/c:
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

ICD Given:
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                
-                            (1,500.00)                     -                                 -                              (1,500.00)                     

Gratuity Liability
0.92                          -                                -                                 -                              0.92                              

(0.74)                        -                                -                                 -                              (0.74)                             
1.63                          -                                -                                 -                              1.63                              
-                            -                                -                                 -                              -                                

* Transaction with IIFLW CSR Foundation includes contributions done in the current year, towards liabilities of current year and carried forward liabilities of previous year.

Anup Maheshwari

Manoj Shenoy

IIFL Investment Adviser & Trustee Services Ltd

IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)
IIFL Securities Limited

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited

IIFL Trustee Limited

IIFL Finance Limited

IIFL Securities Limited

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)

IIFL Wealth Distribution Services Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Distributions Services Limited)

IIFL Wealth Management Limited

IIFL Management Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (Formerly known as IIFL Wealth Finance 
Limited)
IIFL Finance Limited

IIFL Wealth Capital Markets Limited (Formerly known as L & T Capital 
Markets Limited)
IIFL Trustee Limited

IIFL Wealth Portfolio Managers Limited (Formerly known as IIFL 
Portfolio Managers Limited)



Note 34.  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021 (₹ in Mn)

SR.
No.

Particulars  Within 12 months  After 12 months  As at March 31, 2021 

ASSETS

1 Financial Assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 84.06                               -                                   84.06                               
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 16.98                               16.98                               
(c) Derivative financial instruments -                                   
(b) Receivables 

(I) Trade receivables 731.76                             -                                   731.76                             
(II) Other receivables -                                   3.59                                 3.59                                 

(c) Loans 0.73                                 4.66                                 5.39                                 
(d) Investments 39.04                               611.48                             650.52                             
(e) Other financial assets 1.81                                 0.04                                 1.85                                 

2 Non-Financial Assets 
(a) Current tax assets (net) -                                   6.95                                 6.95                                 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) -                                   4.49                                 4.49                                 
(c) Property, plant and equipment -                                   0.07                                 0.07                                 
(d) Capital work-in-progress -                                   -                                   -                                   
(e) Other intangible assets -                                   2.92                                 2.92                                 
(f) Right to Use Asset 0.63                                 5.86                                 6.49                                 
(g) Other non-financial assets 307.74                             333.92                             641.66                             

Total Assets 1,182.75                         973.98                            2,156.73                         
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
1 Financial Liabilities 

(a) Payables 
(I)Trade payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises -                                   
     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 261.86                             -                                   261.86                             
(II) Other payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises -                                   -                                   -                                   
     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises -                                   -                                   -                                   

(c) Debt securities -                                   
(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                                   
(e) Deposits -                                   
(b) Financial Lease Obligation 2.77                                 3.93                                 6.71                                 
(c) Other financial liabilities 54.40                               0.18                                 54.58                               

2 Non-Financial Liabilities 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 147.42                             -                                   147.42                             
(b) Provisions 1.42                                 21.57                               22.99                               
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) -                                   
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 137.22                             -                                   137.22                             

3 EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital -                                   321.00                             321.00                             
(b) Other equity -                                   1,204.95                         1,204.95                         

Total Liabilities and Equity 605.08                            1,551.63                         2,156.73                         

FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021



Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2020 (₹ in Mn)
SR.
No.

Particulars  Within 12 months  After 12 months  As at March 31, 2020 

ASSETS

1 Financial Assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 29.58                               -                                   29.58                               
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above -                                   
(c) Derivative financial instruments -                                   
(b) Receivables 

(I) Trade receivables 650.57                             -                                   650.57                             
(II) Other receivables -                                   9.89                                 9.89                                 

(c) Loans 1,520.08                         1.16                                 1,521.24                         
(d) Investments -                                   29.31                               29.31                               
(e) Other financial assets 0.06                                 0.04                                 0.10                                 

2 Non-Financial Assets 
(a) Inventories -                                   
(a) Current tax assets (net) -                                   51.89                               51.89                               
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) -                                   6.06                                 6.06                                 
(c) Property, plant and equipment -                                   0.05                                 0.05                                 
(d) Capital work-in-progress -                                   -                                   -                                   
(e) Other intangible assets -                                   6.32                                 6.32                                 
(f) Right to Use Asset -                                   1.59                                 1.59                                 
(g) Other non-financial assets 253.68                             393.62                             650.35                             

3 Assets classified as held for sale -                                   

Total Assets 2,453.96                         499.92                            2,956.95                         
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
1 Financial Liabilities 

(a) Derivative financial instruments -                                   -                                   -                                   
(a) Payables 

(I)Trade payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises -                                   
     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 281.90                             -                                   281.90                             
(II) Other payables 
      (i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises -                                   -                                   -                                   
     (ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises -                                   -                                   -                                   

(c) Debt securities -                                   
(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) -                                   
(e) Deposits 
(b) Financial Lease Obligation 0.60                                 1.07                                 1.67                                 
(c) Other financial liabilities 100.05                             0.18                                 100.23                             

2 Non-Financial Liabilities 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 61.28                               61.28                               
(b) Provisions 1.41                                 20.59                               22.01                               
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 30.68                               -                                   30.68                               

3 EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital -                                   321.00                             321.00                             
(b) Other equity -                                   2,138.18                         2,138.18                         

Total Liabilities and Equity 475.92                            2,481.02                         2,956.95                         



FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 35. Subsequent Events
There were no subsequent events from the date of financial statements till the date of adoption of accounts

Note 37. Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 15, 2021

Note 38. The previous year figures have been regrouped wherever necessary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Kumar Sharadindu Manoj Shenoy
Chairperson Whole Time Director and Chief 

Executive Officer
(DIN: 07341455) (DIN: 06679235)

Place : Mumbai Priya Biswas Chinmay Joshi
Dated: May 15, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Note 36. The spread of COVID-19 across the globe and India contributed to significant volatility in global and Indian financial

markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities. The full impact on the business due to a COVID-19

related economic slowdown, changes in client sentiment and investment behaviour are as yet unknown. The Company has

continued to engage with clients and employees through extensive business continuity planning and robust technology

platform with minimal disruption on any business activity during the lockdown phase. Further, the Company has assessed

that it would be able to navigate currently prevailing uncertain economic conditions based on its business model, profile of

assets and liabilities, availability of liquidity and capital at its disposal. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic (including

the current "second wave") will impact the Company’s operations and results will depend on future developments, which

remain uncertain. Accordingly, the Company has undertaken extensive scenario planning to better prepare itself and will

continue to actively monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions.


	Directors Report of IIFL Asset Management Limited  F.Y.20-21.pdf (p.1-25)
	IIFL AMC Auditor's Report 2020-21.pdf (p.26-34)
	IIFL AMC - Mar 21 - Mn stamped & Signed.pdf (p.35-79)

